
"City of Choice"

Planning and Zoning Commission

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM
Council Chambers
200 S. Main St.
Cibolo, Texas 78108

Est. Duration: 2 hr 30 min

1: Call to Order

2: Roll call and Excused Absences

2A. Excused Absence

3: Invocation/Moment of Silence

4: Pledge of Allegiance

5: Public Hearings

5A. Conduct a public hearing regarding a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) request to allow Accessory Residential Units,
Residential District use for certain real property located at 165 Elaine Schlather Parkway, legally described as ABS:
194 SUR: JAMES JONES TRACT #6, 5.01 AC.

5B. Conduct a public hearing regarding a variance request to Code of Ordinances Sec. 58-5 to allow a wall sign that
does not face a right-of-way at 778 Cibolo Valley Drive, Suite 111.

5C. Conduct a public hearing regarding a Unified Development Code (UDC) amendment to Article 18, to eliminate
the sidewalk requirements in the Old Town District.

5D. Conduct a public hearing regarding the repeal of Ordinance No. 1417 granting a variance for 504 Pfeil Road to
eliminate the requirement for sidewalks per Sec. 18.17.A of the UDC with conditions.

6: Citizens to be Heard

This is the only time during the Meeting that a citizen can address the Commission. It is the opportunity for visitors and guests to address
the Commission on any issue to include agenda items. All visitors wishing to speak must fill out the Sign-In Roster prior to the start of the
meeting. The Commission may not deliberate any non-agenda issue, nor may any action be taken on any non-agenda issue at this time;
however, the Commission may present any factual response to items brought up by citizens. (Attorney General Opinion - JC-0169) (Limit of
three minutes each.) All remarks shall be addressed to the Commission as a body. Remarks may also be addressed to any individual
member of the Commission so long as the remarks are (i) about matters of local public concern and (ii) not disruptive to the meeting or
threatening to the member or any attendee. Any person violating this policy may be requested to leave the meeting, but no person may
be requested to leave or forced to leave the meeting because of the viewpoint expressed. This meeting is livestreamed. If anyone would
like to make comments on any matter regarding the City of Cibolo or on an agenda item and have this item read at this meeting, please
email pcimics@cibolotx.gov or telephone 210-566-6111 before 5:00 pm the date of the meeting.

7: Consent Agenda

(All items listed below are considered to be routine and non-controversial by the commission and will be approved by one motion. There
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a commission member requests, in which case the item will be removed from the
consent agenda.)

7A. Approval of the minutes from the February 14, 2024, Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting

8: Discussion/Action Items

8A. Discussion/Action and recommendation regarding the Final Plat of Cibolo Creek Center



8B. Discussion/Action regarding a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) request to allow Accessory Residential Units,
Residential District use for certain real property located at 165 Elaine Schlather Parkway, legally described as ABS:
194 SUR: JAMES JONES TRACT #6, 5.01 AC.

8C. Discussion/Action regarding a variance request to Code of Ordinances Sec. 58-5 to allow a wall sign that does
not face a right-of-way at 778 Cibolo Valley Drive, Suite 111.

8D. Discussion/Action regarding a Unified Development Code (UDC) amendment to Article 18, to eliminate the
sidewalk requirements in the Old Town District.

8E. Discussion/Action regarding the repeal of Ordinance No. 1417 granting a variance for 504 Pfeil Road to eliminate
the requirement for sidewalks per Sec. 18.17.A of the UDC with conditions.

8F. Discussion/Presentation regarding plan elements of the 2024 Cibolo Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan and IH-10
Corridor Plan

9: UDC, CIP, Master Plan and Staff Updates

9A. Staff Update

10: Items for future agendas

11: Adjournment

11A. Adjourn Meeting

This Notice of Meeting is posted and pursuant to the Texas Government Code 551.041 - .043 on the front bulletin

board of the Cibolo Municipal Building, 200 South Main Street, Cibolo, Texas which is a place readily accessible to the

public at all times and that said notice was posted on 

Peggy Cimics, TRMC

City Secretary

 

Pursuant to Section 551.071, 551.072, 551.073, 551.074, 551.076, 551.077, 551.084 and 551.087 of the Texas

Government Code, the City of Cibolo reserves the right to consult in closed session regarding any item listed on this

agenda.

A possible quorum of committees, commissions, boards and corporations may attend this meeting.

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking space is available. Request for accommodation or

interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to the meeting. Please contact the City Secretary at (210) 566-

6111. All cell phones must be turned off before entering the meeting. 

I certify that the attached notice and agenda of items to be considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission was

removed by me from the City Hall bulletin board on the ______day of _____________2024.

 

_________________________________________

Name and Title



 

Date Posted: March 8, 2024



City of Cibolo

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report

Conduct a public hearing regarding a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) request to allow Accessory Residential

Units, Residential District use for certain real property located at 165 Elaine Schlather Parkway, legally

described as ABS: 194 SUR: JAMES JONES TRACT #6, 5.01 AC.

Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM

Agenda Group

Public Hearings Item: 5A

From

Lindsey Walker, Planner I

Staff Contact(s)

Lindsey Walker,

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION ACTION: 1. Conduct 1  Public Hearing

2. Discussion/Ac�on and Recommenda�on regarding the above referenced pe��on

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

Project Name:     CUP-24-02

Owners:             Henry & Jintana Alves

Representa�ve:     Henry & Jintana Alves

Loca�on/Area:     165 Elaine Schlather Pkwy, 5.01 acres

Loca�on:         Elaine Schlather Pkwy, north of Green Valley Dr

Council District:      1

Future Land Use:     Neighborhood Residen�al

Exis�ng Zoning:     High Density Single-Family Residen�al (SF-6)

Requested Zoning:  Condi�onal Use Permit (CUP)

Proposed Use:     Accessory Residen�al Units, Residen�al District

FINDINGS:

A zoning request is specifically about land use, not the future engineering of the land itself, and should meet criteria per UDC Ar�cle 4.3.1.5. Decisions 

regarding future engineering of the land occur with the pla�ng process, where the property’s design is known. The applicant lot is within the High Density 

Single-Family Residen�al (SF-6) zoning district. The southeast por�on of the property is zoned Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) however, this sec�on of 

the property is not included in the request. The applicant property is directly adjacent, to the west, to Veteran’s Park and Cibolo Fire Sta�on 2, within the 

PF-P and PF-I, respec�vely. To the northwest of the applicant property is Elaine Schlather Intermediate School, zoned PF-I. East is another 5-acre property 

zoned SF-6. South is the C-1 zoning district. Currently on the applicant property is one primary residence, and an accessory structure. The applicant is 

reques�ng a CUP to place a third accessory structure to be used as a mother-in-law flat. 

PUBLIC NOTICE:

No�ce was published within the local newspaper (Seguin Gaze�e) on February 25, 2024, and the City Website. Individual le�ers were sent by mail to 12 

property owners within 200’ of the site.  To date, Staff has received zero (0) in favor of and zero (0) in opposi�on.  Public Hearings are scheduled on March 

13, 2024 (Planning & Zoning Commission) and on March 26, 2024 (City Council).  Approval/Disapproval of the zoning ordinance is tenta�vely scheduled 

for the April 9, 2024, City Council mee�ng.

STAFF CONCLUSIONS:

Staff recommends, should Council approve the CUP for Accessory Residen�al Units, Residen�al District located at 165 Elaine Schlather Parkway, that it be 

subject to the following condi�ons:

st

Off-Street Parking – One (1) additional parking space is required to comply with UDC Sec. 10.2 off-street parking requirements.

https://cms2.revize.com/revize/cibolo/planning/Future%20Land%20Use%20Map%20AUG_9_2022.pdf
https://cibolotx.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/interactivelegend/index.html?appid=10205c55e64c40f495c088397b8888ec
https://cms2.revize.com/revize/cibolo/planning/UDC/2024_January%20UDC%20Update.pdf
https://www.cibolotx.gov/business/planning/public_notices.php


PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:

1. Recommend Approval to City Council for the requested CUP for an Accessory Residen�al Unit, Residen�al District use, located at 165 Elaine 

Schlather Parkway, legally described as ABS: 194 SUR: JAMES JONES TRACT#6 5.01 AC.

2. Recommend Approval of the requested CUP for an Accessory Residen�al Units, Residen�al District use for property located at 165 Elaine Schlather 

Parkway, legally described as ABS: 194 SUR: JAMES JONES TRACT#6 5.01 AC, and any addi�onal condi�ons Planning & Zoning may require.

3. Recommend Denial to City Council for the requested CUP for an Accessory Residen�al Units, Residen�al District use, with findings.

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Unified Development Code (UDC) Sec�on 4.3.2 – Condi�onal Use Permit Approval Considera�ons 

A CUP is intended to provide some flexibility to tradi�onal zoning by offering a mechanism to balance specific site constraints and development 

plans with the larger interest of the community and the integrity of the UDC. An applica�on for a CUP follows the same process as a Zoning Map 

Amendment Process (rezoning). The Permit, if granted, may include condi�ons placed upon the development of the property. The Planning & 

Zoning Commission and City Council shall consider the following, at a minimum, in conjunc�on with its delibera�ons for approval or denial of the 

applica�on and the establishment of condi�ons: (for reference, UDC and Comprehensive/Master Plan)

A. Consistency with the Comprehensive Master Plan;

Comprehensive/Master Plan – Future Land Use Categories – Neighborhood Residen�al

Appropriate Land Use Types: The appropriate primary uses allowed in areas designated as neighborhood residen�al include single-family 

residen�al, accessory residen�al units, home professions, large scale assembly, community recrea�on, local u�lity services, park and recrea�on 

services, primary and secondary educa�on facili�es, and safety services. Appropriate secondary uses include such things as accessory living 

quarters and residen�al units, greenhouses, life care services, day-care services, and nursery schools.

Compa�ble Zoning Districts (P.43 from Comp Plan):

Single-Family Residen�al (SF-2) | Planned Unit Development (PUD)

STAFF FINDING: The Comprehensive Master Plan calls out this parcel as Neighborhood Residen�al, with compa�ble zoning districts such as SF-4, 

which more closely aligns with the 2013 classifica�on of SF-2 used in the Comprehensive Plan. Although the current zoning implies higher density 

than outlined by the master plan, the request for accessory residen�al units aligns with the appropriate use types. It is important to note the 

applicant lot is 5 acres, while typical SF-6 proper�es are roughly a sixth of that size.

B. Conformance with applicable regula�on in this UDC and standards established by the UDC;

Comprehensive/Master Plan – Future Land Use Categories – Neighborhood Residen�al

Building & Fire Codes – Applicant must comply with all Building and Fire Code requirements.

Owner Occupied – The owner of the Property must occupy one of the premises on the Property.

Permits & Inspections – All required building permits and Certificate of Occupancy must be obtained. All permit applications submitted 

for this property are subject to the requirements of the Code.

Additional Uses – No other conditional uses are allowed under this conditional use permit.

Recorda�on of Plat – A subdivision plat must be submi�ed for review and approval with the City of Cibolo and recorded upon comple�on.

SF-6 Regula�ons - All regula�ons of the SF-6 Zoning District, other than those amended by the Condi�onal Use Permit, apply to the Property.

https://www.cibolotx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/5077/2022-Unified-Development-Code-July-2022-?bidId=
https://www.cibolotx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/1723/2016-Comprehensive-Master-Plan-Final?bidId=


Intent & Character – The neighborhood residen�al future land use category is intended for areas that will be primarily developed with new 

single-family detached residen�al subdivisions. Development reflects a suburban to auto-oriented character; meaning that these areas are 

predominantly dominated by streets, driveways, and garages. Lot sizes and architectural styles are fairly uniform; but generally, new 

development density is between two and six units per acre.

STAFF FINDING: The Zoning Map Amendment will promote the health, safety, or general welfare of the City and the safe and orderly development 

of the City as it complies with the intent of the Comprehensive Master Plan.

C. Compa�bility with exis�ng or permi�ed uses on abu�ng sites, in terms of building height, bulk, scale, setbacks and open spaces, 

landscaping and site development, and access/circula�on. 

(2018) UDC Sec�on 14.2.N.7. Low Density Residen�al District (SF-6)

a. Intent – The high-density residen�al district enables higher density (up to 5.5 units per acre) housing types, such as townhomes, garden homes, 

or duplex/triplex to be developed in closer proximity to collector streets. The district is intended to complement the suburban district and in infill 

areas of the Town Center, serving as a transi�onal use between commercial and single family uses. Mobile/ manufactured/modular homes are not 

permi�ed.

b. Permi�ed uses –one (1) dwelling unit per lot, and community recrea�onal facili�es.

c. Specific uses – subject to Site Plan approval, private recrea�onal ameni�es, places of worship, schools.

STAFF FINDING: The UDC provides lot design guidelines within the High Density Single-Family Residen�al (SF-6) Zoning District that are designed in 

scale for compa�bility with surrounding mix of residen�al areas. The applicant property far exceeds the lot requirements for SF-6 proper�es, as it is 

5 acres. 

D. Poten�al unfavorable impacts on exis�ng or permi�ed uses on abu�ng sites, the extent that such impacts exceed those which 

reasonably may result from use of the site by a permi�ed use; 

(2018) UDC Sec�on 13.1 Residen�al Uses allowed by right and with a Condi�onal Use Permit (CUP).

Lot Area Lot Width Front Setback Rear Setback Side Setback Max Impervious Coverage Maximum Height 

6,600 sq � 60’ 25’ 10’ 10’ 60% 35’



Attachments

A. CUP-24-02-Signed Application.pdf

B. Staff Map.pdf

C. CUP-24-02-SHT_1_OF_3_SITE_PLAN.pdf

*Subject to supplemental use regula�ons of UDC Ar�cle 6.

STAFF FINDING: This zoning district is suitable for uses permi�ed by the district provided the CUP is approved. 

E. Modifica�ons to the site plan which would result in increased compa�bility or would mi�gate poten�ally unfavorable impacts or would 

be necessary to conform to applicable regula�ons and standards and to protect the public health, safety, morals and general welfare.

Comprehensive/Master Plan – Future Land Use Categories – Neighborhood Residen�al

Moving Forward - The following recommenda�ons should be considered as part of rezonings, development approvals, or improvements to exis�ng 

regula�ons:  New neighborhood residen�al developments with a planned large number of lots (e.g., 250 lots or greater) should be required to 

have at least two points of access to a collector roadway or greater in func�onal classifica�on. Development approvals for new residen�al or 

nonresiden�al development should include dedica�on of thoroughfares and trails as within the adopted thoroughfare plan and trail plan maps. 

New neighborhoods should be served by roads with urban cross-sec�ons and should serve vehicular, bicycle, and pedestrian users.

STAFF FINDING: The addi�on of the accessory building conforms with all applicable regula�ons as well as the intent of the Comprehensive Master 

Plan. The proposed mother-in-law flat is not likely to cause any foreseeable unfavorable impacts.

F. Safety and convenience of vehicular and pedestrian circula�on in the vicinity, including traffic reasonably expected to be generated by the 

proposed use.

STAFF FINDING: Staff do not foresee major impacts to traffic as a result of gran�ng the CUP.

SF-6 uses allowed by right SF-6 allowed with CUP

Greenhouse* Accessory Living Quarters

Home Occupa�on* Accessory Residen�al Units, Residen�al District

Manufactured Modular Housing Condominium Residen�al

Single-family Residen�al Group Residen�al

Assembly Pa�o Home

Community Recrea�on Day Care Services (Family)*

Local U�lity Services Day Care Services (Group)*

Park and Recrea�on Services Day Care Services (General Commercial)*

Primary Educa�onal Facili�es Life Care Services*

Safety Services Nursery School*

Secondary Educa�onal Facili�es Concrete/Asphalt Batching Plant (Temporary)





Henry Alves 

165 Elaine Schlather Pkwy 

Cibolo, TX 78108 

February 12, 2024 

I Henry Alves, am requesting a Conditional Use Permit to build a mother-in-law 

fiat on the same lot as the existing principal residence. 



Veterans
Memorial Park

Springtree Blf

E
la

in
e

S
S

c
h

la
th

e
r

P
k

w
y

Cibolo Fire
Station #2

Veteran's Park

Green Valley Rd

Cibolo
Valley

Dr

Cibolo Market

Sip It

SF6

C1

SF6

PF-P

PF-I

Property Information Map for
165 Elaine Schlather Pkwy

Property of Interest

Neighborhood Commercial (C1)

High Density Single-Family
Residential (SF6)

Public Facility (PF) - Institution

Public Facility (PF) - Park

0 100 200 300
Feet

Council District: 1
Zoning District:  4 Acre of SF6 and
1 Acre of C1
Water Service: City of Cibolo
Sewer Service: City of Cibolo

±














City of Cibolo

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report

Conduct a public hearing regarding a variance request to Code of Ordinances Sec. 58-5 to allow a wall sign

that does not face a right-of-way at 778 Cibolo Valley Drive, Suite 111.

Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM

Agenda Group

Public Hearings Item: 5B

From

Lindsey Walker, Planner I

Staff Contact(s)

Lindsey Walker,

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION ACTION: 1. Conduct 1  Public Hearing

2. Discussion & Recommenda�on to the Mayor and City Council

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

Project Name:   VR-24-01

Owners:           Endeavor Real Estate Group

Representa�ve:  Michelle Romano, Signtek Inc.

Loca�on/Area:   778 Cibolo Valley Drive, Suite 111 

Loca�on:       Borgfeld Market on Cibolo Valley Drive

Council District:  2

Zoning:               Retail/Office (C-3) 

Proposed Use:   Restaurant, Neighborhood

FINDINGS:

A variance to Code of Ordinances Chapter 58 (Signs) is processed and handled in the same manner as a zoning variance, with a recommenda�on from this 

Commission to City Council. The Planning and Zoning Commission must review the criteria for gran�ng a Variance, per UDC Sec�on 4.3.5.3. The applicant 

property is located within the Borgfeld Market shopping center off the corner of Borgfeld Boulevard and Cibolo Valley Drive. It is surrounded by 

commercial proper�es within the Retail/Office (C-3) and General Commercial (C-4) zoning districts. The rear of the shopping center abuts the Walmart 

parking lot. The applicant is reques�ng a variance to allow a sign to be placed on the back of the building that faces the lot. The Sign Ordinance prohibits 

wall signs to be placed on facades that do not face public or private rights-of-way, of which the Walmart parking lot is neither. The sign currently on the 

rear eleva�on was approved erroneously in December 2022. All recent sign applica�ons have been enforced in accordance with its requirements since the 

discovery and understanding of this sec�on of the Sign Ordinance. The neighboring tenant in suite 107 was denied the same variance request at the 

January 9, 2024, City Council mee�ng.

PUBLIC NOTICE:

Public no�ce was published within the local newspaper (Seguin Gaze�e) on February 25, 2024, and the City Website. Individual le�ers were sent by mail 

to nine property owners within 200’ of the site.  To date, Staff has received zero (0) in favor of and zero (0) in opposi�on.  Public Hearings are scheduled 

on March 13, 2024 (Planning & Zoning Commission) and on March 26, 2024 (City Council).  Approval/Disapproval of the zoning ordinance is tenta�vely 

scheduled for the April 9, 2024, City Council mee�ng.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:

st

Recommend approval to City Council of the requested variance pe��on to Code of Ordinances Sec. 58-5 to allow a wall sign that does not face a 

right-of-way at 778 Cibolo Valley Drive, Suite 111.

https://cibolotx.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/interactivelegend/index.html?appid=10205c55e64c40f495c088397b8888ec
https://library.municode.com/tx/cibolo/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=n2013CIUNDECO_APXAUNDECO_ART4ZORE_S4.3PR
https://www.cibolotx.gov/business/planning/public_notices.php


Attachments

A. Variance Application.pdf

B. Property Map.pdf

D. ROW Exhibit.pdf

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Unified Development Code (UDC) Sec�on 4.3.1.5 – Zoning Map Amendment Process Approval Criteria

To establish a basis for variance considera�on, the applicant is required to submit Findings of Fact addressing each of the following considera�ons: (for 

reference, UDC and Comprehensive/Master Plan)

A. Special condi�ons and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or building involved and which are not applicable to other 

land, structures, or buildings in the same district.

STAFF FINDING: The request does not meet this criterion as the situa�on is not unique to the applicant's property. The oversight in issuing the permit has 

now been discovered and does not warrant con�nua�on.

B. That literal interpreta�on of the Zoning Ordinance would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other proper�es in the same 

district under the terms of the Ordinance.

58-5 – Wall (facade). Any sign painted on, a�ached to or projec�ng from the wall surface of a building (whether permanent or portable), including signs on 

awnings and/or marquees. Sign must face a right-of-way be ii public or private.

STAFF FINDING: Literal interpreta�on would not deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by neighboring proper�es. While the sign was 

previously approved erroneously, all recent sign applica�ons have been enforced in accordance with its requirements since the discovery and 

understanding of this sec�on of the Sign Ordinance. Consistent adherence to the correct interpreta�on is now enforced.

C. That special condi�ons or circumstances did not result from the ac�ons of the applicant.

STAFF FINDING: The condi�ons are not a result of applicant ac�ons.

D. That gran�ng the variance will not confer on the applicant any special privilege that is denied by the Zoning Ordinance to other lands, structure, 

or buildings in the same district.

STAFF FINDING: The applicant would receive special privileges if granted the variance, as it departs from the standard Sign Ordinance requirements that 

have been consistently applied since the discovery of this sec�on of the code.

Variances cannot be granted to; 1) relieve self-created or personal hardship, 2) be based solely on economic gain or loss, 3) nor shall it permit any person 

a privilege in developing a parcel of land not permi�ed by this Ordinance to other parcels of land in the zoning district. No variance may be granted which 

results in undue hardship on another parcel of land. The applicant bears the burden of proof in establishing the facts jus�fying a variance. 

Recommend approval to City Council of the requested variance pe��on to Code of Ordinances Sec. 58-5 to allow a wall sign that does not face a 

right-of-way at 778 Cibolo Valley Drive, Suite 111, with condi�ons.

Deny the variance pe��on with findings.

https://www.cibolotx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/5077/2022-Unified-Development-Code-July-2022-?bidId=
https://www.cibolotx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/1723/2016-Comprehensive-Master-Plan-Final?bidId=
















lwalker
Architect
Applicant Property

lwalker
Architect
Applicant Property



What is a Right of Way?

RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROW)

A parcel of land occupied, or intended to be occupied, by a public road, street or alley
or some other public purpose, such as drainage. Where appropriate, right-of-way may

include other facilities and utilities such as sidewalks; electrical, communication, oil
and natural gas lines and facilities; and water and sanitary and storm sewer facilities. 

The use of right-of-way shall also include parkways and medians outside of the paved
portion of the street. The usage of the term right-of-way for land platting purposes

shall mean that every right-of-way hereafter established and shown on a final plat is to
be separate and distinct from the lots or parcels adjoining such right-of-way.

Planning & Zoning Commission | March 13, 2024



EXAMPLE

What is a Right of Way?

To the right is a section of a site plan.
Per the UDC definition of a ROW, the
ROWS shown in this plan are distinct

and separate from the rest of the plan,
as shown on the corresponding

snippets of the plat.   

Planning & Zoning Commission | March 13, 2024



ADJACENT
PROPERTY

What is a Right of Way? Planning & Zoning Commission | March 13, 2024

To the right is the Walmart site plan.
The area in question is a portion of the

Walmart parking lot (expanded
below). If this area were a ROW per the
UDC definition, it would be called out

as such, like the developer did with
Borgfeld and Cibolo Valley Drive.



City of Cibolo

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report

Conduct a public hearing regarding a Unified Development Code (UDC) amendment to Article 18, to eliminate

the sidewalk requirements in the Old Town District.

Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM

Agenda Group

Public Hearings Item: 5C

From

Susana Huerta, Assistant Planning Director

Staff Contact(s)

Kelsee Jordan Lee,

Attachments

Ordinance.pdf

Staffmap_ Old Town Overlay.pdf

ITEM SUMMARY:

City Council directed staff to bring forward a code amendment to the UDC excluding the proper�es located within the Old Town District. This request was 

the result of mul�ple property owners located within the Old Town District voicing concerns over the difficulty mee�ng the requirement due to the size 

and configura�on of older lots. During the development of property, property owners are currently required to construct sidewalks along both sides of 

certain streets or payment in lieu in an amount to subs�tute for the construc�on of sidewalks.

Under the City’s UDC, Sec�on 18.17. A., reads as follows: Sidewalks shall be required along both sides of all streets throughout the City, except along 

Interstate Highways 35 and 10. All lots must provide access to a concrete sidewalk. 

The proposed ordinance will amend this sec�on of the Code by removing the requirement from proper�es located in the Old Town District. Council has 

discussed looking at future fiscal years and analyzing the City's Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for the inclusion of sidewalk development in key areas 

within the Old Town District.

PUBLIC NOTICE:

No�ce was published within the local newspaper (Seguin Gaze�e) on February 25, 2024, and the City Website. Individual letters were sent by 

mail to 234 property owners within 200’ of the site. To date, Staff has received zero (0) in favor of and zero (0) in opposition. 

Public Hearings are scheduled on March 13, 2024 (Planning & Zoning Commission) and on March 26, 2024 (City Council). 

Approval/Disapproval of the zoning ordinance is tentatively scheduled for the April 9, 2024, City Council meeting.

SUBMITTED BY:

Susana Huerta, Assistant Planning Director

https://www.cibolotx.gov/business/planning/public_notices.php


Page 1 of 3  

 
"City of Choice” 

 
ORDINANCE NO: [] 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 18.17.A OF THE CIBOLO UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE TO EXCLUDE REAL PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
BOUNDARIES OF THE OLD TOWN OVERLAY DISTRICT FROM THE 
REQUIREMENT TO CONSTRUCT SIDEWALKS OR FUND SIDEWALKS IN LIEU 
OF CONSTRUCTION; DECLARING A PUBLIC PURPOSE; INCORPORATING 
RECITALS; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cibolo, Texas finds the City of Cibolo, Texas (the 
"City") is a home-rule municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that Section 18.17.A of the Unified Development Code 
requires the construction of sidewalks along both sides of certain streets, or a payment in lieu in 
an amount to substitute for the construction of the sidewalks, which is applicable to real property 
within the Old Town Overlay District (“OTOD”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the layout of the roads, drainage facilities and home 
placement make the addition of sidewalks within the OTOD difficult and prohibitively 
expensive; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that excluding the OTOD from the sidewalk requirement is 
in furtherance of the Purpose and Intent of the District as described in Section 4.7.4.4.4 of the 
2024 Unified Development Code, which states in pertinent part: “…to provide relief to smaller 
residential lots typical of the Overlay District and its historic nature … to preserve [the] ability 
to continue use and enjoyment thereof. …”; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is not in the best interest of Cibolo citizens to continue 
to require the addition of sidewalks within the OTOD, or require a payment in lieu for sidewalks, 
which will not be built, as currently required in the District; and  
 
WHEREAS, two public hearings were held to discuss the amendment described herein; with 
the first public hearing being conducted by the Planning & Zoning Commission on [] during a 
posted meeting and the second public hearing being conducted by City Council on [] at a regular 
public meeting, each being conducted for the purpose of providing all interested persons the 
opportunity to be heard concerning the proposed amendment described herein; and 

 



Page 2 of 3  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds legal notice notifying the public of both public hearings on 
the amendment was posted on the City's official website and published in the Seguin Gazette, a 
newspaper of general circulation in the City of Cibolo, on []; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds the Planning and Zoning Commission, having the authority 
to review and provide recommendation on this non-zoning lot dimension and/or subdivision 
regulation amendment, considered the amendment requested by the City Council on [], following 
due notice, and a public hearing, recommending the City Council [adopt/reject] the amendment 
to the UDC; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds upon approval, it should direct the City Manager and City 
Secretary to take such actions as are necessary and appropriate to effectuate this amendment. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CIBOLO, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. The Cibolo UDC is hereby amended by deleting subsection 
18.17.A thereof and substituting therefor a new subsection 18.17.A to provide as follows: 
 
 

City of Cibolo 
Unified Development Code 

. . . .  
Section 18.17  
. . . .  
A. Requirement  

Sidewalks shall be required along both sides of all streets throughout the City, except along Interstate 
Highway 35, along Interstate Highway 10, and within the Old Town Overlay District. All lots, other than 
those excepted, must provide access to a concrete sidewalk. 

 
SECTION 2. PUBLIC PURPOSE. The City Council finds that the action taken, evidenced by 
this ordinance, complies with all applicable rules and regulations set forth in the UDC and all 
other applicable law. 
 
SECTION 3. INCORPORATING RECITALS. The City Council approves the recitals hereto 
and incorporates them herein as findings of fact as if recited verbatim. 
 
SECTION 4 . REPEALING ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT AND SAVINGS CLAUSE.  
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of 
such conflict with all remaining portions not conflicting being saved from repeal herein. 
 
 
  



Page 3 of 3  

SECTION 6 . EFFECTIVE DATE. The Ordinance shall be effective immediately following 
approval by the City Council. 
 
 
ORDERED on this [] day of [] 2024. 
 
 
 
      ________________________ 
      Mark Allen, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 
____________________________ 
Peggy Cimics, TRMC 
City Secretary 

 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
 
By: ________________________ 
        George E. Hyde 

         City Attorney
  Hyde Kelley LLP 
 



Casa
Mechanical

Services
Liberty Oilfield

Services

Signature
Plating

Triple/S
Dynamics

N
M

a
in

S
t

Buffalo Trl

Navajo Cir

In
d

ia
n

C
i r

Sioux Cir

Five Leaf Park

TheaterSeat.Com

Marion Dolford
Learning
Center

Axton Truck
Equipment

Robles 1
Demolition

Cibolo Post
Office

Cibolo Public
Works Yard

Cibolo Bowling
Club

Woods Storage
Mini-RV-Boat

Chaminade
Capital

Corporation

Texaco Cibolo

Sonic Drive-In

Cibolo
C
reek

Big Cypre
ss

Pfeil Rd

Loop 539 W

FM
78

W

Independent
Rough Terrain

Center LLC

Toby Conner
Ag Complex

Tractor Supply

Caliber
Collision Cibolo

K & S
Automotive

Just Kids
Academy

Red River
Ranch Model

Home

Niemietz Park
Bathrooms 1

Concrete Yoga

Choo Choo
Xpress

Covered
Basketball

Court

Head Start
Cibolo

Community

L
a

k
e

V
ie

w
D

r
T

o
w

n
C

re
e

k
W

a
y

Valiant Valley

Town Creek
Village

S
M

a
in

S
t

Loop 539 E

R
e

d
R

iv
e

r

FM 78 W FM 78 E

Cibolo YMCA
and Digital

Library

Cibolo Fire
Station #1

Cibolo City Hall

The Shops At
The Mill

Cibolo Police
Station

ReMAX

River Rat
Tattoos

E-Z Mart/Shell

SF6*

C2

SF6*

C2

C2

C2

C2

C2

C2

C2

C2

C2C2

SF6*

C2

C2

C2

C2

C2

SF2
C2

PF-I

C2

PF-I

C2

C2
C2

C2
C2
C2

C2C2

C2
C2 C2

C2

C2

C2
C2

C2

C2

C2
C2

C2
C2 C2

SF6*

C2
C2
C2

C2
C2

C2

C2
C2

C2

C2

SF6*

SF6*

PF-I

Property Information Map for Old Town Overlay

Property of Interest

Community Retail/Service (C2)

Low Density Single-Family Residential (SF2)

Medium Density Residential (SF4)

High Density Single-Family Residential (SF6)

Public Facility (PF) - Institution

Public Facility (PF) - Park

±
0 500 1,000 1,500

Feet

Council District: 1 and 2
Zoning: SF6, SF4, and C2
Water Service: City of Cibolo
Sewer Service: City of Cibolo



City of Cibolo

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report

Conduct a public hearing regarding the repeal of Ordinance No. 1417 granting a variance for 504 Pfeil Road to

eliminate the requirement for sidewalks per Sec. 18.17.A of the UDC with conditions.

Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM

Agenda Group

Public Hearings Item: 5D

From

Lindsey Walker, Planner I

Staff Contact(s)

Lindsey Walker,

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION  ACTION: 1. Conduct 1  Public Hearing

2. Discussion & Recommenda�on to the Mayor and City Council

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

Project Name:     VR-23-02

Owners:             KOOS, LLC

Representa�ve: Cassandra Kearns

Loca�on/Area:  504 Pfeil Road

Council District:  2

Future Land Use:  Downtown

Exis�ng Zoning: Community Retail/Office (C-2)  | Old Town Mixed Use Overlay

Proposed Use:     Commercial

FINDINGS:

A variance to waive the requirement for the property owner to install perimeter sidewalks along the public street surrounding 504 Pfeil Road per UDC 

Sec�on 18.17.A was approved, with condi�ons, by the City Council on October 10, 2023. The condi�ons of the variance were that the property owner 

would enter into an agreement to “tender to the City a cash payment, in lieu of escrowed monies, for City’s construc�on of the otherwise required 

sidewalk” within 30 days of the City sending no�ce of the intent to construct a sidewalk, immediately upon the ten year anniversary of the ordinance, or if 

the property owner “dives�ng itself of all or part of the ownership interest of the Subject Property.”

At the January 23, 2024, City Council mee�ng, staff was directed to begin the process of amending the UDC to eliminate the sidewalk requirement within 

the Old Town Mixed Use Overlay. This direc�on also included revisi�ng Ordinance No. 1417 with the intent to remove the condi�ons from the approved 

variance.

PUBLIC NOTICE:

Published within the local newspaper (Seguin Gaze�e) on February 25, 2024, and the City Website. Individual le�ers were sent by mail to 15 property 

owners within 200’ of the site. To date, Staff has received zero (0) in favor of and zero (0) in opposi�on. Public Hearings are scheduled on March 13, 2024 

(Planning & Zoning Commission) and on March 26, 2024 (City Council). Approval/Disapproval of the ordinance repeal is tenta�vely scheduled for the April 

9, 2024, City Council mee�ng.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:

st

https://cms2.revize.com/revize/cibolo/planning/Future%20Land%20Use%20Map%20AUG_9_2022.pdf
https://cibolotx.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/interactivelegend/index.html?appid=10205c55e64c40f495c088397b8888ec
https://www.cibolotx.gov/business/planning/public_notices.php


Attachments

A. ORD 1417 10_10_2023.pdf

B. Application.pdf

C. 504Pfeil_Rd_Notification_Map.pdf

Recommend approval to City Council to repeal Ordinance No. 1417 gran�ng a variance for 504 Pfeil Road to eliminate the requirement for sidewalks 

per Sec. 18.17.A of the UDC with condi�ons.

Deny the ordinance repeal with findings.



City of Choice" 

ORDINANCE NO: 1417

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A VARIANCE TO ELIMINATE THE

REQUIREMENT FOR CONSTRUCTING SIDEWALKS FOR CERTAIN

REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 504 PFEIL ROAD, CIBOLO, TEXAS, 

78108; SETTING CONDITIONS OF VARIANCE; DECLARING A

PUBLIC PURPOSE; INCORPORATING RECITALS; PROVIDING A

REPEALER CLAUSE AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Cibolo, Texas ( the " City") is a home -rule municipality; and

WHEREAS, Section 18. 17.A of the City' s Unified Development Code (" UDC") requires the
installation of sidewalks for applicable developments; and

WHEREAS, Cassandra Kerns, as representative of KOOS, LLC, the Owner, of 504 Pfeil Lane, 

Cibolo, Texas, 78108 ( the " Subject Property") is seeking development which would otherwise
trigger the requirement to install sidewalks, have submitted a complete application for a variance

to waive the requirement to install the sidewalks; and

WHEREAS, two public hearings were held to discuss the variance described herein; with the
first public hearing being conducted by the Planning & Zoning Commission on July 12, 2023
during a posted meeting and the second public hearing being conducted by City Council on July
25, 2023 at a regular meeting, each being conducted for the purpose of providing all interested
persons the opportunity to be heard concerning the proposed variance described herein; and

WHEREAS, legal notice notifying the public of both public hearings on the requested variance
was posted on the City' s official website and published in the Seguin Gazette, a newspaper of
general circulation in the City of Cibolo, on June 25, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission, having the authority to review and provide
recommendation on this non -zoning lot dimension and/ or subdivision regulation under Section
4. 2.2 using the factors in Section 4.3. 5. 3 of the UDC, considered the variance request application
on July 12, 2023, following due notice, and a public hearing, recommend by unanimous vote to
City Council that the variance be denied; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, having considered this variance following due notice and a
public hearing, and having considered all required factors and made all required findings set
forth in Section 4.3. 5. 3 of the UDC, has determined that this variance should be approved on the

condition that the Owners of the Subject Property may tender to the City a cash contribution in
lieu of construction of the sidewalks at a later date, be paid into the City' s sidewalk fund to be
used for installations of sidewalks within the City' s jurisdictional limits, including but not
limited to the Subject Property; and

7362/ 8 DM # 294113. 5



WHEREAS, upon approval, City Council directs the City Manager and City Secretary to take
such actions as are necessary and appropriate to effectuate this variance approval; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

CIBOLO, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. VARIANCE APPROVED. A variance to the requirement to construct the

perimeter sidewalk required in Sec. 18. 17. A of the UDC is hereby granted, pursuant to Section
4. 3. 5. 3 of the UDC, to waive any requirement for the property owner to install perimeter
sidewalks along the public street surrounding the property located at 504 Pfeil Road, Cibolo, 
Texas, 78108, subject to the following conditions: 

1) As a condition precedent to any development or construction on the Subject Property, or
the issuance of any permit for improvements, demolition or construction on the Subject
Property, the Owner(s) of the Subject Property will enter into an agreement to tender to
the City a cash payment, in lieu of escrowed monies, for City' s construction of the
otherwise required sidewalk on the following terms: 

a. Payment will be in the amount of EIGHT DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($ 8. 00) 

per square foot of sidewalks which would otherwise be required on the Subject

Property based on an approved site plan for proposed development " Payment". 

b. Payment will be due upon the earlier of: 

i. Thirty ( 30) calendar days from City sending notice to Owner of City' s
intent to construct a sidewalk abutting the Subject Property; or

ii. Seven ( 7) calendar days from notice that City Manager, acting in his/ her
sole discretion, has reason to believe Owner intends to divest all or part of

its ownership interest in the Subject Property and provides notice to
Owner and Owner confirms such intent to divest; or

iii. Immediately upon the Owner divesting itself of all or part of the
ownership interest in the Subject Property; or

iv. Immediately upon the ten ( 10) year anniversary of the effective date of
this Ordinance. 

c. Cassandra Kearns, in her individual capacity, will guarantee the Payment and will
be joint and severally liable with Owner for the Payment; and

d. Owner will secure Payment with the Subject Property. 

2) This variance will automatically expire and become void without any action of City, upon
the occurrence of either the following events: 

a. City and Owner fail to enter into a written agreement including the above terms, 
or Cassandra Kearns fails to execute a personal guarantee for Payment, within six

6) months of the effective date of this Ordinance; or

7362/ 8 DM# 294133. 5



b. determination the ordinance, variance or related agreement are illegal or

unenforceable in whole or in part, and any required sidewalk construction per the
UDC will be immediately required. 

SECTION 2. PUBLIC PURPOSE. The City Council finds that the variance herein approved
complies with all applicable rules and regulations set forth in the UDC and other law. 

SECTION 3. INCORPORATING RECITALS. The City Council approves the recitals hereto
and incorporates them herein as findings of fact. 

SECTION 4. REPEALING ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT AND SAVINGS CLAUSE. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of
such conflict with all remaining portions not conflicting being saved from repeal herein. 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. The Ordinance shall be effective immediately following
approval by the City Council. 

ORDERED this 1 Oth day of October

By: 
MARK ALLEN

Mayor

ATT/E 

PEGGY CIMICS, TRMC

City Secretary
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

7362/ 8 DM# 294133. 5

DTRG

City Attorney

3















City of Cibolo

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report

Approval of the minutes from the February 14, 2024, Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting

Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 7A

From

Peggy Cimics, City Secretary

Staff Contact(s)

Peggy Cimics,

Attachments

021424 PZ Minutes.pdf

PRIOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION:
N/A

BACKGROUND:
N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
N/A

MOTION(S):
N/A



 

PLANNING AND ZONING MEETING 

City of Cibolo City Hall 

200 S. Main Street 

February 14, 2024 

6:30 PM - 10:30 PM 

 

MINUTES 

 

1. Call to Order – The meeting was called to order by Vice Chairman Ms. Zimmermann at 6:32 p.m. 

2. Oath of Office – The item was tabled. 

3. Roll call and Excused Absences – Members Present: Ms. Zimmermann, Ms. Dodd, Ms. Garcia, 

Ms. Fishback. Ms. Beaver, and Mr. Hinze. Members Absent: Ms. Greve and Ms. Hubbard. Ms. 

Garcia made the motion to excuse the absence of Ms. Greve and Ms. Hubbard. The motion was 

seconded by Ms. Fishback. For: All; Against: None. Motion carried 6 to 0.  

4. Invocation/Moment of Silence – Ms. Garcia gave the Invocation.  

5. Pledge of Allegiance – All those in attendance recited the Pledge of Allegiance.  

6. Citizens to be Heard 

This is the only time during the Meeting that a citizen can address the Commission. It is the 

opportunity for visitors and guests to address the Commission on any issue to include agenda items. 

All visitors wishing to speak must fill out the Sign-In Roster prior to the start of the meeting. The 

Commission may not debate any non-agenda issue, nor may any action be taken on any non-agenda 

issue at this time; however, the Commission may present any factual response to items brought up 

by citizens. (Attorney General Opinion - JC-0169) (Limit of three minutes each.) All remarks shall 

be addressed to the Commission as a body. Remarks may also be addressed to any individual 

member of the Commission so long as the remarks are (i) about matters of local public concern and 

(ii) not disruptive to the meeting or threatening to the member or any attendee. Any person violating 

this policy may be requested to leave the meeting, but no person may be requested to leave or forced 

to leave the meeting because of the viewpoint expressed. This meeting is livestreamed.  If anyone 

would like to make comments on any matter regarding the City of Cibolo or on an agenda 

item and have this item read at this meeting, please email pcimics@cibolotx.gov or telephone 

210-566-6111 before 5:00 pm the date of the meeting. 

No individuals signed up to speak during this item.  

7. Consent Agenda  

A. Approval of the minutes from the January 10, 2024, Planning & Zoning Commission 

Meeting. 

mailto:pcimics@cibolotx.gov


Ms. Fishback made the motion to approve the consent agenda. The motion was seconded 

by Ms. Garcia. For: All; Against: None. The motion carried 6 to 0.  

8. Discussion/Action Items  

A. Discussion/Action and Recommendation to the Mayor and City Council regarding the 

Preliminary Plat of Grace Valley Ranch Phase 3 Street Extension.  

 

Mr. Hinze made the motion to recommend denial to the Mayor and City Council regarding 

the Preliminary Plat of Grace Valley Ranch Phase 3 Street Extension due to pending 

comments. The motion was seconded by Ms. Garcia. For: All; Against: None. The motion 

carried 6 to 0.  

 

B. Discussion/Action and Recommendation to the Mayor and City Council regarding the 

Replat of Lot 1, Cibolo Business Park. 

 

Ms. Zimmermann made the motion to recommend denial to the Mayor and City Council 

regarding the Replat of Lot 1, Business Park due to pending comments.  The motion was 

seconded by Ms. Beaver.  For: All; Against: None. The motion carried 6 to 0.  

 

C. Discussion/Action and Recommendation to the Mayor and City Council regarding the 

Final Plat of Buffalo Crossing II Knights Crossing. 

Mr. Hinze made the motion to recommend approval to the Mayor and City Council 

regarding the Final Plat of Buffalo Crossing II Knights Crossing. The motion was seconded 

by Ms. Garcia. For: All; Against: None. The motion carried 6 to 0.  

D. Discussion/Action and Recommendation to the Mayor and City Council regarding the 

Replat of Mesa at Turning Stone – C7 – Lot 3. 

 

Mr. Hinze made the motion to recommend denial to the Mayor and City Council 

regarding the Replat of Mesa at Turning Stone C7 – Lot 3 due to comments pending. The 

motion was seconded by Ms. Fishback. For: All; Against: None. The motion carried 6 to 

0.  

 

E. Discussion/Action and Recommendation to the Mayor and City Council regarding the 

Final Plat of Venado Crossing Unit 5. 

Mr. Hinze made the motion to recommend denial to the Mayor and City Council 

regarding the Final Plat of Venado Crossing Unit 5 due to pending comments. The 

motion was seconded by Ms. Beaver. For: All; Against: None. The motion carried 6 to 0. 

9. UDC, CIP, Master Plan and Staff Updates  

Ms. Huerta briefed the commission on Site Plans currently in review, Site Plans recently 

approved, Plats currently in review, and P&Z recommendations and City Council action.  

10. Items for future agendas  

Oath of Office for new member and training opportunities. 

 



11. Executive Session 

The Commission will recess its regular meeting and reconvene in Executive Session as  
 authorized by the Texas Government Code Section 551.071, Consultation with Attorney,  to 

 deliberate and seek legal advice regarding the role and responsibilities of the Planning and Zoning 

 Commission. Commission will return to Open Session and take action, if necessary.  

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission convened into Executive Session to deliberate and seek 

legal advice regarding the role and responsibilities of the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

Time: 7:08 p.m. 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission reconvened into open session at 7:38 p.m. No action was 

taken.  

 

12. Adjournment 

Ms. Fishback made the motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:39 p.m. The motion was seconded by 

Ms. Beaver. For: All; Against: None. Motion carried 6 to 0. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 14TH DAY OF MARCH 2024. 

 

Jennifer Greve 

Chairman 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

 

 



City of Cibolo

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report

Discussion/Action and recommendation regarding the Final Plat of Cibolo Creek Center

Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM

Agenda Group

Discussion/Action Items Item: 8A

From

Lindsey Walker, Planner I

Staff Contact(s)

Lindsey Walker,

          

PLANNING & ZONING ACTION: Discussion/Action and Recommendation regarding the above referenced petition 

PROPERTY INFORMATION: 

Project Name: PC-24-07-FP  

Owner:          Cibolo Property, LLC 

Representative: Century Engineering, Inc., Anthony Lewis 

Area:              4.0253 acres 

Location:      Intersection of FM 1103, Weil Rd, & Brite Rd 

Council District:  7 

Zoning (map): General Retail/Office (C-3) 

Proposed Use: One (1) Commercial Lot  

FINDINGS/CURRENT ACTIVITY: 

Per Unified Development Code (UDC) Article 20.3.5., ‘Final Plat’ Property is required to be platted prior to development of a site within or outside the City Limits. The 

plat or subdivision of land must comply with the Land Study, if applicable, and meet all requirements of the Unified Development Code and the Design and 

Construction Manual. 

 

Cibolo Creek Center is located at the bend of FM 1103, where FM 1103 intersects with both Weil Road and Brite Road. The land is currently undeveloped. UDC Sec. 

14.4 – Lot Design Standards (Commercial) allow the lot, which is within the C-3 zoning district, to be a minimum of 70’ in width with no minimum square footage. This 

property is identified as Commercial on the City of Cibolo Future Land Use Map (FLUM).  

 

STREETS/FUTURE THOROUGHFARE PLAN (FTP): 

Cibolo Creek Center is located on FM 1103, which is a Major Arterial according to the Future Thoroughfare Plan. Brite Road to the east is also identified as a Major 

Arterial. Weil Road is a Minor Arterial. Rights-of-way dedications were provided on both Brite and Weil Roads. No additional right-of-way dedication was required on 

FM 1103. 

 

Cibolo Creek Center obtained a driveway permit from TXDOT for a driveway on FM 1103. 

 

UTILITIES: 

The development of the water and sewer utilities within this unit are to be constructed and served by Green Valley Special Utility District (GVSUD). Electricity is to be 

provided by Guadalupe Valley Electric Coop (GVEC). 

 

DRAINAGE: 

The Drainage Plan was approved on May 15, 2023. No portion of the property is located within the 100-year floodplain per FEMA maps. The developer is proposing 

a detention pond on the south end of the property. 

 

PARKLAND:  

Due to the commercial nature of this plat, this development is exempt from dedicating parkland or any parkland fees.  

https://maps-and-gis-cibolotx.hub.arcgis.com/apps/10205c55e64c40f495c088397b8888ec/explore


Attachments

A. PC-24-07-FP-FP-project letter.pdf

MGO Application.pdf

B. Plat.pdf

C. PC-24-07-FP-240228 - Cibolo Creek Center -Final Plat - KFW Letter.pdf

D. Staff Map.pdf

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff and the City Engineer have reviewed the Final Plat and associated documents. Per the review letters attached; comments are pending. Therefore, Staff 

recommends DENIAL of this Final Plat. 

 

 

 

 

 





Cibolo
Final Plat Application

PC-24-07-FP

Submitted by Tony Lewis
tlewis@centuryengineering.com

(281) 236-2092

Contact Information
Applicant's Contact Information
Title: First Name:  Anthony Last Name: Lewis Suffix: 

Business Name: Century Engineering, Inc.

Mailing Address:  2455 BRIARWEST BLVD

City: Houston   State: TX Zip: 77077
Email Address: alewisiphone@gmail.com

Cell Phone: (281) 236-2092        Work Phone: (713) 780-8871        Home Phone: (281) 236-
2092
Property Owner's Contact Information
Title: First Name:   Last Name: Suffix: 

Business Name: 

Mailing Address:  

City:    State:   Zip: 
Email Address: 

Cell Phone:         Work Phone:         Home Phone: 

Address of Proposed Work: 0 FM 1103

City: Cibolo State: TX  Zip: 78108

You can complete this application and view application updates online at 
MyGovernmentOnline.org

Page 1 of 4Printed 3/7/2024



Representative's Contact Information
Title: First Name:   Last Name: Suffix: 

Business Name: 

Mailing Address:  

City:    State:   Zip: 
Email Address: 

Cell Phone:         Work Phone:         Home Phone: 

Application Questionnaire (* denotes required question)

Final Plat

Project Name * Cibolo Creek Center

Total Acres * 4.0253

Survey Name/Subdivision * Trinidad Carcia

Abstract No. * 137

Current Zoning * C-3 General Retail/Office

Proposed Zoning * C-3 General Retail/Office

Overlay * FM 78

# of Lots * 1

You can complete this application and view application updates online at 
MyGovernmentOnline.org

Page 2 of 4Printed 3/7/2024



Documents Uploaded 
The following documents are attached to the 
Application.
Copy of a Final Tree Survey 4.025 ac topo cibolo tx tree survey final.pdf

Copy of the Final Plat Encompassing All Land 
Owned by the Subdivider

2-2-24 cibolo creek center plat 1 of 
2_020224.pdf

2-2-24 cibolo creek center plat 2 of 
2_020224.pdf

Copy of the Final Traffic Impact Analysis Report gua22-fm1103-537 driveway permit.pdf

gua22-fm1103-537 re txdot plat review request 
- cibolo creek center.pdf

Copy of the Final Utility and Final Storm Water 
Management Report

new_2023 (80% discharge) storm water 
detention drainage report.pdf

# of Units * 1

Work Type * Commercial

Total Proposed Square Footage * 6850

Current Use * Vacant

Proposed Use * Gas Station / Convivence Store / Leased Area

By typing my name below, I do hereby attest that 
the information contained in this application is 
true, accurate, and complete. *

Tony Lewis

You can complete this application and view application updates online at 
MyGovernmentOnline.org

Page 3 of 4Printed 3/7/2024



Copy of the Final Utility and Final Storm Water 
Management Report

3 of 17 - site existing conditions drainage 
plan.pdf

4 of 17 - site drainage plan.pdf

5 of 17 - water and san, swr, plan.pdf

Letter of Authorization letter of authorization_020224.pdf

Narrative of Application Request project letter_cibolo creek center_091721.pdf

Project Applicable LOC Approvals city of cibolo application for letter of 
certification_charter_080123.pdf

city of cibolo application for letter of 
certification_cpe_092221.pdf

city of cibolo application for letter of 
certification_gvec_091021.pdf

city of cibolo application for letter of 
certification_gvsud_091721.pdf

city of cibolo application for letter of 
certification_spectrum_072823.pdf

Proof of Tax Certification 2g0137-0000-03420-0-00 tax 
certificate_guadalupe county_020224.pdf

Signed Notarized Authorization Form signed notarized authorization form_020624.pdf

You can complete this application and view application updates online at 
MyGovernmentOnline.org

Page 4 of 4Printed 3/7/2024







 

3421 PAESANOS PARKWAY, SUITE 200,  SAN ANTONIO, TX 78231   •   P: 210.979.8444   •   F: 210.979.8441   •   KFWENGINEERS.COM   •   TBPE Firm #9513	

                          On behalf of the: 
 
 
 
February 28, 2024 
 
City of Cibolo  
Attn: Lindsey Walker 
200 S. Main Street 
Cibolo, Texas 78108 
 
 
Re:  Final Plat Review 
  Cibolo Creek Center  
 
Ms. Walker, 
 
KFW Engineers has completed its review of the referenced subdivision as submitted by Century 
Engineering and has the following comments. 
 
General Note –  

1. Please include as part of your resubmittal a comment response letter addressing all comments. 
 
Plat –  

1. There was previously a 15' water easement that was removed from plat. Please explain why. Is 

note 17 still applicable with this easement removed? 

2. The approved set of construction plans have a proposed 5’ X 10’ water easement. If this is not 

added to the plat it will need to be dedicated to the City by separate instrument. 
 
Our review of this subdivision does not relieve or release the Engineer of Record or Surveyor of Record 
from complying with any and all the requirements of the local, state, and federal rules and regulations 
or guidelines impacting this project. If you require additional information, please contact our office.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Andy Carruth, P.E. 
Plan Reviewer for the City of Cibolo 





City of Cibolo

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report

Discussion/Action regarding a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) request to allow Accessory Residential Units,

Residential District use for certain real property located at 165 Elaine Schlather Parkway, legally described as

ABS: 194 SUR: JAMES JONES TRACT #6, 5.01 AC.

Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM

Agenda Group

Discussion/Action Items Item: 8B

From

Lindsey Walker, Planner I

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION COMMISSION ACTION: 1. Conduct 1  Public Hearing

2. Discussion/Ac�on and Recommenda�on regarding the above referenced pe��on

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

Project Name:     CUP-24-02

Owners:             Henry & Jintana Alves

Representa�ve:     Henry & Jintana Alves

Loca�on/Area:     165 Elaine Schlather Pkwy, 5.01 acres

Loca�on:         Elaine Schlather Pkwy, north of Green Valley Dr

Council District:      1

Future Land Use:     Neighborhood Residen�al

Exis�ng Zoning:     High Density Single-Family Residen�al (SF-6)

Requested Zoning:  Condi�onal Use Permit (CUP)

Proposed Use:     Accessory Residen�al Units, Residen�al District

FINDINGS:

A zoning request is specifically about land use, not the future engineering of the land itself, and should meet criteria per UDC Ar�cle 4.3.1.5. Decisions 

regarding future engineering of the land occur with the pla�ng process, where the property’s design is known. The applicant lot is within the High Density 

Single-Family Residen�al (SF-6) zoning district. The southeast por�on of the property is zoned Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) however, this sec�on of 

the property is not included in the request. The applicant property is directly adjacent, to the west, to Veteran’s Park and Cibolo Fire Sta�on 2, within the 

PF-P and PF-I, respec�vely. To the northwest of the applicant property is Elaine Schlather Intermediate School, zoned PF-I. East is another 5-acre property 

zoned SF-6. South is the C-1 zoning district. Currently on the applicant property is one primary residence, and an accessory structure. The applicant is 

reques�ng a CUP to place a third accessory structure to be used as a mother-in-law flat. 

PUBLIC NOTICE:

No�ce was published within the local newspaper (Seguin Gaze�e) on February 25, 2024, and the City Website. Individual le�ers were sent by mail to 12 

property owners within 200’ of the site.  To date, Staff has received zero (0) in favor of and zero (0) in opposi�on.  Public Hearings are scheduled on March 

13, 2024 (Planning & Zoning Commission) and on March 26, 2024 (City Council).  Approval/Disapproval of the zoning ordinance is tenta�vely scheduled 

for the April 9, 2024, City Council mee�ng.

STAFF CONCLUSIONS:

Staff recommends, should Council approve the CUP for Accessory Residen�al Units, Residen�al District located at 165 Elaine Schlather Parkway, that it be 

subject to the following condi�ons:

st

Off-Street Parking – One (1) additional parking space is required to comply with UDC Sec. 10.2 off-street parking requirements.

https://cms2.revize.com/revize/cibolo/planning/Future%20Land%20Use%20Map%20AUG_9_2022.pdf
https://cibolotx.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/interactivelegend/index.html?appid=10205c55e64c40f495c088397b8888ec
https://cms2.revize.com/revize/cibolo/planning/UDC/2024_January%20UDC%20Update.pdf
https://www.cibolotx.gov/business/planning/public_notices.php


PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:

1. Recommend Approval to City Council for the requested CUP for an Accessory Residen�al Unit, Residen�al District use, located at 165 Elaine 

Schlather Parkway, legally described as ABS: 194 SUR: JAMES JONES TRACT#6 5.01 AC.

2. Recommend Approval of the requested CUP for an Accessory Residen�al Units, Residen�al District use for property located at 165 Elaine Schlather 

Parkway, legally described as ABS: 194 SUR: JAMES JONES TRACT#6 5.01 AC, and any addi�onal condi�ons Planning & Zoning may require.

3. Recommend Denial to City Council for the requested CUP for an Accessory Residen�al Units, Residen�al District use, with findings.

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Unified Development Code (UDC) Sec�on 4.3.2 – Condi�onal Use Permit Approval Considera�ons 

A CUP is intended to provide some flexibility to tradi�onal zoning by offering a mechanism to balance specific site constraints and development 

plans with the larger interest of the community and the integrity of the UDC. An applica�on for a CUP follows the same process as a Zoning Map 

Amendment Process (rezoning). The Permit, if granted, may include condi�ons placed upon the development of the property. The Planning & 

Zoning Commission and City Council shall consider the following, at a minimum, in conjunc�on with its delibera�ons for approval or denial of the 

applica�on and the establishment of condi�ons: (for reference, UDC and Comprehensive/Master Plan)

A. Consistency with the Comprehensive Master Plan;

Comprehensive/Master Plan – Future Land Use Categories – Neighborhood Residen�al

Appropriate Land Use Types: The appropriate primary uses allowed in areas designated as neighborhood residen�al include single-family 

residen�al, accessory residen�al units, home professions, large scale assembly, community recrea�on, local u�lity services, park and recrea�on 

services, primary and secondary educa�on facili�es, and safety services. Appropriate secondary uses include such things as accessory living 

quarters and residen�al units, greenhouses, life care services, day-care services, and nursery schools.

Compa�ble Zoning Districts (P.43 from Comp Plan):

Single-Family Residen�al (SF-2) | Planned Unit Development (PUD)

STAFF FINDING: The Comprehensive Master Plan calls out this parcel as Neighborhood Residen�al, with compa�ble zoning districts such as SF-4, 

which more closely aligns with the 2013 classifica�on of SF-2 used in the Comprehensive Plan. Although the current zoning implies higher density 

than outlined by the master plan, the request for accessory residen�al units aligns with the appropriate use types. It is important to note the 

applicant lot is 5 acres, while typical SF-6 proper�es are roughly a sixth of that size.

B. Conformance with applicable regula�on in this UDC and standards established by the UDC;

Comprehensive/Master Plan – Future Land Use Categories – Neighborhood Residen�al

Building & Fire Codes – Applicant must comply with all Building and Fire Code requirements.

Owner Occupied – The owner of the Property must occupy one of the premises on the Property.

Permits & Inspections – All required building permits and Certificate of Occupancy must be obtained. All permit applications submitted 

for this property are subject to the requirements of the Code.

Additional Uses – No other conditional uses are allowed under this conditional use permit.

Recorda�on of Plat – A subdivision plat must be submi�ed for review and approval with the City of Cibolo and recorded upon comple�on.

SF-6 Regula�ons - All regula�ons of the SF-6 Zoning District, other than those amended by the Condi�onal Use Permit, apply to the Property.

https://www.cibolotx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/5077/2022-Unified-Development-Code-July-2022-?bidId=
https://www.cibolotx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/1723/2016-Comprehensive-Master-Plan-Final?bidId=


Intent & Character – The neighborhood residen�al future land use category is intended for areas that will be primarily developed with new 

single-family detached residen�al subdivisions. Development reflects a suburban to auto-oriented character; meaning that these areas are 

predominantly dominated by streets, driveways, and garages. Lot sizes and architectural styles are fairly uniform; but generally, new 

development density is between two and six units per acre.

STAFF FINDING: The Zoning Map Amendment will promote the health, safety, or general welfare of the City and the safe and orderly development 

of the City as it complies with the intent of the Comprehensive Master Plan.

C. Compa�bility with exis�ng or permi�ed uses on abu�ng sites, in terms of building height, bulk, scale, setbacks and open spaces, 

landscaping and site development, and access/circula�on. 

(2018) UDC Sec�on 14.2.N.7. Low Density Residen�al District (SF-6)

a. Intent – The high-density residen�al district enables higher density (up to 5.5 units per acre) housing types, such as townhomes, garden homes, 

or duplex/triplex to be developed in closer proximity to collector streets. The district is intended to complement the suburban district and in infill 

areas of the Town Center, serving as a transi�onal use between commercial and single family uses. Mobile/ manufactured/modular homes are not 

permi�ed.

b. Permi�ed uses –one (1) dwelling unit per lot, and community recrea�onal facili�es.

c. Specific uses – subject to Site Plan approval, private recrea�onal ameni�es, places of worship, schools.

STAFF FINDING: The UDC provides lot design guidelines within the High Density Single-Family Residen�al (SF-6) Zoning District that are designed in 

scale for compa�bility with surrounding mix of residen�al areas. The applicant property far exceeds the lot requirements for SF-6 proper�es, as it is 

5 acres. 

D. Poten�al unfavorable impacts on exis�ng or permi�ed uses on abu�ng sites, the extent that such impacts exceed those which 

reasonably may result from use of the site by a permi�ed use; 

(2018) UDC Sec�on 13.1 Residen�al Uses allowed by right and with a Condi�onal Use Permit (CUP).

Lot Area Lot Width Front Setback Rear Setback Side Setback Max Impervious Coverage Maximum Height 

6,600 sq � 60’ 25’ 10’ 10’ 60% 35’



Attachments

A. CUP-24-02-Signed Application.pdf

B. Staff Map.pdf

C. CUP-24-02-SHT_1_OF_3_SITE_PLAN.pdf

*Subject to supplemental use regula�ons of UDC Ar�cle 6.

STAFF FINDING: This zoning district is suitable for uses permi�ed by the district provided the CUP is approved. 

E. Modifica�ons to the site plan which would result in increased compa�bility or would mi�gate poten�ally unfavorable impacts or would 

be necessary to conform to applicable regula�ons and standards and to protect the public health, safety, morals and general welfare.

Comprehensive/Master Plan – Future Land Use Categories – Neighborhood Residen�al

Moving Forward - The following recommenda�ons should be considered as part of rezonings, development approvals, or improvements to exis�ng 

regula�ons:  New neighborhood residen�al developments with a planned large number of lots (e.g., 250 lots or greater) should be required to 

have at least two points of access to a collector roadway or greater in func�onal classifica�on. Development approvals for new residen�al or 

nonresiden�al development should include dedica�on of thoroughfares and trails as within the adopted thoroughfare plan and trail plan maps. 

New neighborhoods should be served by roads with urban cross-sec�ons and should serve vehicular, bicycle, and pedestrian users.

STAFF FINDING: The addi�on of the accessory building conforms with all applicable regula�ons as well as the intent of the Comprehensive Master 

Plan. The proposed mother-in-law flat is not likely to cause any foreseeable unfavorable impacts.

F. Safety and convenience of vehicular and pedestrian circula�on in the vicinity, including traffic reasonably expected to be generated by the 

proposed use.

STAFF FINDING: Staff do not foresee major impacts to traffic as a result of gran�ng the CUP.

SF-6 uses allowed by right SF-6 allowed with CUP

Greenhouse* Accessory Living Quarters

Home Occupa�on* Accessory Residen�al Units, Residen�al District

Manufactured Modular Housing Condominium Residen�al

Single-family Residen�al Group Residen�al

Assembly Pa�o Home

Community Recrea�on Day Care Services (Family)*

Local U�lity Services Day Care Services (Group)*

Park and Recrea�on Services Day Care Services (General Commercial)*

Primary Educa�onal Facili�es Life Care Services*

Safety Services Nursery School*

Secondary Educa�onal Facili�es Concrete/Asphalt Batching Plant (Temporary)





Henry Alves 

165 Elaine Schlather Pkwy 

Cibolo, TX 78108 

February 12, 2024 

I Henry Alves, am requesting a Conditional Use Permit to build a mother-in-law 

fiat on the same lot as the existing principal residence. 



Veterans
Memorial Park

Springtree Blf

E
la

in
e

S
S

c
h

la
th

e
r

P
k

w
y

Cibolo Fire
Station #2

Veteran's Park

Green Valley Rd

Cibolo
Valley

Dr

Cibolo Market

Sip It

SF6

C1

SF6

PF-P

PF-I

Property Information Map for
165 Elaine Schlather Pkwy

Property of Interest

Neighborhood Commercial (C1)

High Density Single-Family
Residential (SF6)

Public Facility (PF) - Institution

Public Facility (PF) - Park

0 100 200 300
Feet

Council District: 1
Zoning District:  4 Acre of SF6 and
1 Acre of C1
Water Service: City of Cibolo
Sewer Service: City of Cibolo

±














City of Cibolo

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report

Discussion/Action regarding a variance request to Code of Ordinances Sec. 58-5 to allow a wall sign that does

not face a right-of-way at 778 Cibolo Valley Drive, Suite 111.

Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM

Agenda Group

Discussion/Action Items Item: 8C

From

Lindsey Walker, Planner I

Staff Contact(s)

Lindsey Walker,

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION ACTION: 1. Conduct 1  Public Hearing

2. Discussion & Recommenda�on to the Mayor and City Council

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

Project Name:    VR-24-01

Owners:            Endeavor Real Estate Group

Representa�ve:   Michelle Romano, Signtek Inc.

Loca�on/Area:    778 Cibolo Valley Drive, Suite 111 

Loca�on:        Borgfeld Market on Cibolo Valley Drive

Council District:   2

Zoning:                Retail/Office (C-3) 

Proposed Use:     Restaurant, Neighborhood

FINDINGS:

A variance to Code of Ordinances Chapter 58 (Signs) is processed and handled in the same manner as a zoning variance, with a recommenda�on from this 

Commission to City Council. The Planning and Zoning Commission must review the criteria for gran�ng a Variance, per UDC Sec�on 4.3.5.3. The applicant 

property is located within the Borgfeld Market shopping center off the corner of Borgfeld Boulevard and Cibolo Valley Drive. It is surrounded by 

commercial proper�es within the Retail/Office (C-3) and General Commercial (C-4) zoning districts. The rear of the shopping center abuts the Walmart 

parking lot. The applicant is reques�ng a variance to allow a sign to be placed on the back of the building that faces the lot. The Sign Ordinance prohibits 

wall signs to be placed on facades that do not face public or private rights-of-way, of which the Walmart parking lot is neither. The sign currently on the 

rear eleva�on was approved erroneously in December 2022. All recent sign applica�ons have been enforced in accordance with its requirements since the 

discovery and understanding of this sec�on of the Sign Ordinance. The neighboring tenant in suite 107 was denied the same variance request at the 

January 9, 2024, City Council mee�ng.

PUBLIC NOTICE:

Public no�ce was published within the local newspaper (Seguin Gaze�e) on February 25, 2024, and the City Website. Individual le�ers were sent by mail 

to nine property owners within 200’ of the site.  To date, Staff has received zero (0) in favor of and zero (0) in opposi�on.  Public Hearings are scheduled 

on March 13, 2024 (Planning & Zoning Commission) and on March 26, 2024 (City Council).  Approval/Disapproval of the zoning ordinance is tenta�vely 

scheduled for the April 9, 2024, City Council mee�ng.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:

st

Recommend approval to City Council of the requested variance pe��on to Code of Ordinances Sec. 58-5 to allow a wall sign that does not face a 

right-of-way at 778 Cibolo Valley Drive, Suite 111.

https://cibolotx.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/interactivelegend/index.html?appid=10205c55e64c40f495c088397b8888ec
https://library.municode.com/tx/cibolo/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=n2013CIUNDECO_APXAUNDECO_ART4ZORE_S4.3PR
https://www.cibolotx.gov/business/planning/public_notices.php


Attachments

A. Variance Application.pdf

B. Property Map.pdf

C. ROW Exhibit.pdf

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Unified Development Code (UDC) Sec�on 4.3.1.5 – Zoning Map Amendment Process Approval Criteria

To establish a basis for variance considera�on, the applicant is required to submit Findings of Fact addressing each of the following considera�ons: (for 

reference, UDC and Comprehensive/Master Plan)

A. Special condi�ons and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or building involved and which are not applicable to other 

land, structures, or buildings in the same district.

STAFF FINDING: The request does not meet this criterion as the situa�on is not unique to the applicant's property. The oversight in issuing the permit has 

now been discovered and does not warrant con�nua�on.

B. That literal interpreta�on of the Zoning Ordinance would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other proper�es in the same 

district under the terms of the Ordinance.

58-5 – Wall (facade). Any sign painted on, a�ached to or projec�ng from the wall surface of a building (whether permanent or portable), including signs on 

awnings and/or marquees. Sign must face a right-of-way be ii public or private.

STAFF FINDING: Literal interpreta�on would not deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by neighboring proper�es. While the sign was 

previously approved erroneously, all recent sign applica�ons have been enforced in accordance with its requirements since the discovery and 

understanding of this sec�on of the Sign Ordinance. Consistent adherence to the correct interpreta�on is now enforced.

C. That special condi�ons or circumstances did not result from the ac�ons of the applicant.

STAFF FINDING: The condi�ons are not a result of applicant ac�ons.

D. That gran�ng the variance will not confer on the applicant any special privilege that is denied by the Zoning Ordinance to other lands, structure, 

or buildings in the same district.

STAFF FINDING: The applicant would receive special privileges if granted the variance, as it departs from the standard Sign Ordinance requirements that 

have been consistently applied since the discovery of this sec�on of the code.

Variances cannot be granted to; 1) relieve self-created or personal hardship, 2) be based solely on economic gain or loss, 3) nor shall it permit any person 

a privilege in developing a parcel of land not permi�ed by this Ordinance to other parcels of land in the zoning district. No variance may be granted which 

results in undue hardship on another parcel of land. The applicant bears the burden of proof in establishing the facts jus�fying a variance. 

Recommend approval to City Council of the requested variance pe��on to Code of Ordinances Sec. 58-5 to allow a wall sign that does not face a 

right-of-way at 778 Cibolo Valley Drive, Suite 111, with condi�ons.

Deny the variance pe��on with findings.

https://www.cibolotx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/5077/2022-Unified-Development-Code-July-2022-?bidId=
https://www.cibolotx.gov/DocumentCenter/View/1723/2016-Comprehensive-Master-Plan-Final?bidId=
















lwalker
Architect
Applicant Property

lwalker
Architect
Applicant Property



What is a Right of Way?

RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROW)

A parcel of land occupied, or intended to be occupied, by a public road, street or alley
or some other public purpose, such as drainage. Where appropriate, right-of-way may

include other facilities and utilities such as sidewalks; electrical, communication, oil
and natural gas lines and facilities; and water and sanitary and storm sewer facilities. 

The use of right-of-way shall also include parkways and medians outside of the paved
portion of the street. The usage of the term right-of-way for land platting purposes

shall mean that every right-of-way hereafter established and shown on a final plat is to
be separate and distinct from the lots or parcels adjoining such right-of-way.

Planning & Zoning Commission | March 13, 2024



EXAMPLE

What is a Right of Way?

To the right is a section of a site plan.
Per the UDC definition of a ROW, the
ROWS shown in this plan are distinct

and separate from the rest of the plan,
as shown on the corresponding

snippets of the plat.   

Planning & Zoning Commission | March 13, 2024



ADJACENT
PROPERTY

What is a Right of Way? Planning & Zoning Commission | March 13, 2024

To the right is the Walmart site plan.
The area in question is a portion of the

Walmart parking lot (expanded
below). If this area were a ROW per the
UDC definition, it would be called out

as such, like the developer did with
Borgfeld and Cibolo Valley Drive.



City of Cibolo

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report

Discussion/Action regarding a Unified Development Code (UDC) amendment to Article 18, to eliminate the

sidewalk requirements in the Old Town District.

Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM

Agenda Group

Discussion/Action Items Item: 8D

From

Susana Huerta, Assistant Planning Director

Staff Contact(s)

Kelsee Jordan Lee,

Attachments

Ordinance.pdf

Staffmap_ Old Town Overlay.pdf

ITEM SUMMARY:

City Council directed staff to bring forward a code amendment to the UDC excluding the proper�es located within the Old Town District. This request was 

the result of mul�ple property owners located within the Old Town District voicing concerns over the difficulty mee�ng the requirement due to the size 

and configura�on of older lots. During the development of property, property owners are currently required to construct sidewalks along both sides of 

certain streets or payment in lieu in an amount to subs�tute for the construc�on of sidewalks.

Under the City’s UDC, Sec�on 18.17. A., reads as follows: Sidewalks shall be required along both sides of all streets throughout the City, except along 

Interstate Highways 35 and 10. All lots must provide access to a concrete sidewalk. 

The proposed ordinance will amend this sec�on of the Code by removing the requirement from proper�es located in the Old Town District. Council has 

discussed looking at future fiscal years and analyzing the City's Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for the inclusion of sidewalk development in key areas 

within the Old Town District.

PUBLIC NOTICE:

No�ce was published within the local newspaper (Seguin Gaze�e) on February 25, 2024, and the City Website. Individual letters were sent by 

mail to 234 property owners within 200’ of the site. To date, Staff has received zero (0) in favor of and zero (0) in opposition. 

Public Hearings are scheduled on March 13, 2024 (Planning & Zoning Commission) and on March 26, 2024 (City Council). 

Approval/Disapproval of the zoning ordinance is tentatively scheduled for the April 9, 2024, City Council meeting.

SUBMITTED BY:

Susana Huerta, Assistant Planning Director

https://www.cibolotx.gov/business/planning/public_notices.php


Page 1 of 3  

 
"City of Choice” 

 
ORDINANCE NO: [] 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 18.17.A OF THE CIBOLO UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE TO EXCLUDE REAL PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
BOUNDARIES OF THE OLD TOWN OVERLAY DISTRICT FROM THE 
REQUIREMENT TO CONSTRUCT SIDEWALKS OR FUND SIDEWALKS IN LIEU 
OF CONSTRUCTION; DECLARING A PUBLIC PURPOSE; INCORPORATING 
RECITALS; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cibolo, Texas finds the City of Cibolo, Texas (the 
"City") is a home-rule municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that Section 18.17.A of the Unified Development Code 
requires the construction of sidewalks along both sides of certain streets, or a payment in lieu in 
an amount to substitute for the construction of the sidewalks, which is applicable to real property 
within the Old Town Overlay District (“OTOD”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the layout of the roads, drainage facilities and home 
placement make the addition of sidewalks within the OTOD difficult and prohibitively 
expensive; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that excluding the OTOD from the sidewalk requirement is 
in furtherance of the Purpose and Intent of the District as described in Section 4.7.4.4.4 of the 
2024 Unified Development Code, which states in pertinent part: “…to provide relief to smaller 
residential lots typical of the Overlay District and its historic nature … to preserve [the] ability 
to continue use and enjoyment thereof. …”; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is not in the best interest of Cibolo citizens to continue 
to require the addition of sidewalks within the OTOD, or require a payment in lieu for sidewalks, 
which will not be built, as currently required in the District; and  
 
WHEREAS, two public hearings were held to discuss the amendment described herein; with 
the first public hearing being conducted by the Planning & Zoning Commission on [] during a 
posted meeting and the second public hearing being conducted by City Council on [] at a regular 
public meeting, each being conducted for the purpose of providing all interested persons the 
opportunity to be heard concerning the proposed amendment described herein; and 

 



Page 2 of 3  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds legal notice notifying the public of both public hearings on 
the amendment was posted on the City's official website and published in the Seguin Gazette, a 
newspaper of general circulation in the City of Cibolo, on []; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds the Planning and Zoning Commission, having the authority 
to review and provide recommendation on this non-zoning lot dimension and/or subdivision 
regulation amendment, considered the amendment requested by the City Council on [], following 
due notice, and a public hearing, recommending the City Council [adopt/reject] the amendment 
to the UDC; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds upon approval, it should direct the City Manager and City 
Secretary to take such actions as are necessary and appropriate to effectuate this amendment. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CIBOLO, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. The Cibolo UDC is hereby amended by deleting subsection 
18.17.A thereof and substituting therefor a new subsection 18.17.A to provide as follows: 
 
 

City of Cibolo 
Unified Development Code 

. . . .  
Section 18.17  
. . . .  
A. Requirement  

Sidewalks shall be required along both sides of all streets throughout the City, except along Interstate 
Highway 35, along Interstate Highway 10, and within the Old Town Overlay District. All lots, other than 
those excepted, must provide access to a concrete sidewalk. 

 
SECTION 2. PUBLIC PURPOSE. The City Council finds that the action taken, evidenced by 
this ordinance, complies with all applicable rules and regulations set forth in the UDC and all 
other applicable law. 
 
SECTION 3. INCORPORATING RECITALS. The City Council approves the recitals hereto 
and incorporates them herein as findings of fact as if recited verbatim. 
 
SECTION 4 . REPEALING ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT AND SAVINGS CLAUSE.  
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of 
such conflict with all remaining portions not conflicting being saved from repeal herein. 
 
 
  



Page 3 of 3  

SECTION 6 . EFFECTIVE DATE. The Ordinance shall be effective immediately following 
approval by the City Council. 
 
 
ORDERED on this [] day of [] 2024. 
 
 
 
      ________________________ 
      Mark Allen, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 
____________________________ 
Peggy Cimics, TRMC 
City Secretary 

 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
 
By: ________________________ 
        George E. Hyde 

         City Attorney
  Hyde Kelley LLP 
 



Casa
Mechanical

Services
Liberty Oilfield

Services

Signature
Plating

Triple/S
Dynamics

N
M

a
in

S
t

Buffalo Trl

Navajo Cir

In
d

ia
n

C
i r

Sioux Cir

Five Leaf Park

TheaterSeat.Com

Marion Dolford
Learning
Center

Axton Truck
Equipment

Robles 1
Demolition

Cibolo Post
Office

Cibolo Public
Works Yard

Cibolo Bowling
Club

Woods Storage
Mini-RV-Boat

Chaminade
Capital

Corporation

Texaco Cibolo

Sonic Drive-In

Cibolo
C
reek

Big Cypre
ss

Pfeil Rd

Loop 539 W

FM
78

W

Independent
Rough Terrain

Center LLC

Toby Conner
Ag Complex

Tractor Supply

Caliber
Collision Cibolo

K & S
Automotive

Just Kids
Academy

Red River
Ranch Model

Home

Niemietz Park
Bathrooms 1

Concrete Yoga

Choo Choo
Xpress

Covered
Basketball

Court

Head Start
Cibolo

Community

L
a

k
e

V
ie

w
D

r
T

o
w

n
C

re
e

k
W

a
y

Valiant Valley

Town Creek
Village

S
M

a
in

S
t

Loop 539 E

R
e

d
R

iv
e

r

FM 78 W FM 78 E

Cibolo YMCA
and Digital

Library

Cibolo Fire
Station #1

Cibolo City Hall

The Shops At
The Mill

Cibolo Police
Station

ReMAX

River Rat
Tattoos

E-Z Mart/Shell

SF6*

C2

SF6*

C2

C2

C2

C2

C2

C2

C2

C2

C2C2

SF6*

C2

C2

C2

C2

C2

SF2
C2

PF-I

C2

PF-I

C2

C2
C2

C2
C2
C2

C2C2

C2
C2 C2

C2

C2

C2
C2

C2

C2

C2
C2

C2
C2 C2

SF6*

C2
C2
C2

C2
C2

C2

C2
C2

C2

C2

SF6*

SF6*

PF-I

Property Information Map for Old Town Overlay

Property of Interest

Community Retail/Service (C2)

Low Density Single-Family Residential (SF2)

Medium Density Residential (SF4)

High Density Single-Family Residential (SF6)

Public Facility (PF) - Institution

Public Facility (PF) - Park

±
0 500 1,000 1,500

Feet

Council District: 1 and 2
Zoning: SF6, SF4, and C2
Water Service: City of Cibolo
Sewer Service: City of Cibolo



City of Cibolo

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report

Discussion/Action regarding the repeal of Ordinance No. 1417 granting a variance for 504 Pfeil Road to

eliminate the requirement for sidewalks per Sec. 18.17.A of the UDC with conditions.

Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM

Agenda Group

Discussion/Action Items Item: 8E

From

Lindsey Walker, Planner I

Staff Contact(s)

Lindsey Walker,

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION ACTION: 1. Conduct 1  Public Hearing

2. Discussion & Recommenda�on to the Mayor and City Council

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

Project Name:      VR-23-02

Owners:              KOOS, LLC

Representa�ve:  Cassandra Kearns

Loca�on/Area:      504 Pfeil Road

Council District:   2

Future Land Use:  Downtown

Exis�ng Zoning: Community Retail/Office (C-2)  | Old Town Mixed Use Overlay

Proposed Use:     Commercial

FINDINGS:

A variance to waive the requirement for the property owner to install perimeter sidewalks along the public street surrounding 504 Pfeil Road per UDC 

Sec�on 18.17.A was approved, with condi�ons, by the City Council on October 10, 2023. The condi�ons of the variance were that the property owner 

would enter into an agreement to “tender to the City a cash payment, in lieu of escrowed monies, for City’s construc�on of the otherwise required 

sidewalk” within 30 days of the City sending no�ce of the intent to construct a sidewalk, immediately upon the ten year anniversary of the ordinance, or if 

the property owner “dives�ng itself of all or part of the ownership interest of the Subject Property.”

At the January 23, 2024, City Council mee�ng, staff was directed to begin the process of amending the UDC to eliminate the sidewalk requirement within 

the Old Town Mixed Use Overlay. This direc�on also included revisi�ng Ordinance No. 1417 with the intent to remove the condi�ons from the approved 

variance.

PUBLIC NOTICE:

Published within the local newspaper (Seguin Gaze�e) on February 25, 2024, and the City Website. Individual le�ers were sent by mail to 15 property 

owners within 200’ of the site. To date, Staff has received zero (0) in favor of and zero (0) in opposi�on. Public Hearings are scheduled on March 13, 2024 

(Planning & Zoning Commission) and on March 26, 2024 (City Council). Approval/Disapproval of the ordinance repeal is tenta�vely scheduled for the April 

9, 2024, City Council mee�ng.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:

st

https://cms2.revize.com/revize/cibolo/planning/Future%20Land%20Use%20Map%20AUG_9_2022.pdf
https://cibolotx.maps.arcgis.com/apps/instant/interactivelegend/index.html?appid=10205c55e64c40f495c088397b8888ec
https://www.cibolotx.gov/business/planning/public_notices.php


Attachments

A. ORD 1417 10_10_2023.pdf

B. Application.pdf

C. 504Pfeil_Rd_Notification_Map.pdf

Recommend approval to City Council to repeal Ordinance No. 1417 gran�ng a variance for 504 Pfeil Road to eliminate the requirement for sidewalks 

per Sec. 18.17.A of the UDC with condi�ons.

Deny the ordinance repeal with findings.



City of Choice" 

ORDINANCE NO: 1417

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A VARIANCE TO ELIMINATE THE

REQUIREMENT FOR CONSTRUCTING SIDEWALKS FOR CERTAIN

REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 504 PFEIL ROAD, CIBOLO, TEXAS, 

78108; SETTING CONDITIONS OF VARIANCE; DECLARING A

PUBLIC PURPOSE; INCORPORATING RECITALS; PROVIDING A

REPEALER CLAUSE AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Cibolo, Texas ( the " City") is a home -rule municipality; and

WHEREAS, Section 18. 17.A of the City' s Unified Development Code (" UDC") requires the
installation of sidewalks for applicable developments; and

WHEREAS, Cassandra Kerns, as representative of KOOS, LLC, the Owner, of 504 Pfeil Lane, 

Cibolo, Texas, 78108 ( the " Subject Property") is seeking development which would otherwise
trigger the requirement to install sidewalks, have submitted a complete application for a variance

to waive the requirement to install the sidewalks; and

WHEREAS, two public hearings were held to discuss the variance described herein; with the
first public hearing being conducted by the Planning & Zoning Commission on July 12, 2023
during a posted meeting and the second public hearing being conducted by City Council on July
25, 2023 at a regular meeting, each being conducted for the purpose of providing all interested
persons the opportunity to be heard concerning the proposed variance described herein; and

WHEREAS, legal notice notifying the public of both public hearings on the requested variance
was posted on the City' s official website and published in the Seguin Gazette, a newspaper of
general circulation in the City of Cibolo, on June 25, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission, having the authority to review and provide
recommendation on this non -zoning lot dimension and/ or subdivision regulation under Section
4. 2.2 using the factors in Section 4.3. 5. 3 of the UDC, considered the variance request application
on July 12, 2023, following due notice, and a public hearing, recommend by unanimous vote to
City Council that the variance be denied; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, having considered this variance following due notice and a
public hearing, and having considered all required factors and made all required findings set
forth in Section 4.3. 5. 3 of the UDC, has determined that this variance should be approved on the

condition that the Owners of the Subject Property may tender to the City a cash contribution in
lieu of construction of the sidewalks at a later date, be paid into the City' s sidewalk fund to be
used for installations of sidewalks within the City' s jurisdictional limits, including but not
limited to the Subject Property; and

7362/ 8 DM # 294113. 5



WHEREAS, upon approval, City Council directs the City Manager and City Secretary to take
such actions as are necessary and appropriate to effectuate this variance approval; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

CIBOLO, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. VARIANCE APPROVED. A variance to the requirement to construct the

perimeter sidewalk required in Sec. 18. 17. A of the UDC is hereby granted, pursuant to Section
4. 3. 5. 3 of the UDC, to waive any requirement for the property owner to install perimeter
sidewalks along the public street surrounding the property located at 504 Pfeil Road, Cibolo, 
Texas, 78108, subject to the following conditions: 

1) As a condition precedent to any development or construction on the Subject Property, or
the issuance of any permit for improvements, demolition or construction on the Subject
Property, the Owner(s) of the Subject Property will enter into an agreement to tender to
the City a cash payment, in lieu of escrowed monies, for City' s construction of the
otherwise required sidewalk on the following terms: 

a. Payment will be in the amount of EIGHT DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($ 8. 00) 

per square foot of sidewalks which would otherwise be required on the Subject

Property based on an approved site plan for proposed development " Payment". 

b. Payment will be due upon the earlier of: 

i. Thirty ( 30) calendar days from City sending notice to Owner of City' s
intent to construct a sidewalk abutting the Subject Property; or

ii. Seven ( 7) calendar days from notice that City Manager, acting in his/ her
sole discretion, has reason to believe Owner intends to divest all or part of

its ownership interest in the Subject Property and provides notice to
Owner and Owner confirms such intent to divest; or

iii. Immediately upon the Owner divesting itself of all or part of the
ownership interest in the Subject Property; or

iv. Immediately upon the ten ( 10) year anniversary of the effective date of
this Ordinance. 

c. Cassandra Kearns, in her individual capacity, will guarantee the Payment and will
be joint and severally liable with Owner for the Payment; and

d. Owner will secure Payment with the Subject Property. 

2) This variance will automatically expire and become void without any action of City, upon
the occurrence of either the following events: 

a. City and Owner fail to enter into a written agreement including the above terms, 
or Cassandra Kearns fails to execute a personal guarantee for Payment, within six

6) months of the effective date of this Ordinance; or

7362/ 8 DM# 294133. 5



b. determination the ordinance, variance or related agreement are illegal or

unenforceable in whole or in part, and any required sidewalk construction per the
UDC will be immediately required. 

SECTION 2. PUBLIC PURPOSE. The City Council finds that the variance herein approved
complies with all applicable rules and regulations set forth in the UDC and other law. 

SECTION 3. INCORPORATING RECITALS. The City Council approves the recitals hereto
and incorporates them herein as findings of fact. 

SECTION 4. REPEALING ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT AND SAVINGS CLAUSE. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of
such conflict with all remaining portions not conflicting being saved from repeal herein. 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. The Ordinance shall be effective immediately following
approval by the City Council. 

ORDERED this 1 Oth day of October

By: 
MARK ALLEN

Mayor

ATT/E 

PEGGY CIMICS, TRMC

City Secretary
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

7362/ 8 DM# 294133. 5

DTRG

City Attorney

3















City of Cibolo

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report

Discussion/Presentation regarding plan elements of the 2024 Cibolo Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan and IH-10

Corridor Plan

Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM

Agenda Group

Discussion/Action Items Item: 8F

From

Eron Spencer, Senior Planner

SUBJECT: 

Discussion/Presentation regarding plan elements of the 2024 Cibolo Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan and IH-10 Corridor Plan

ITEM SUMMARY: 

This item is a presentation on progress being made by the Master Plan Advisory Committee (MPAC) regarding the 

Comprehensive Master Plan, including key elements that are incorporated into the IH-10 Corridor Plan. This presentation 

will cover four key elements of the 2024 Cibolo Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan and IH-10 Corridor Plan. These are the plan 

vision statement, the plan guiding principles, PlaceTypes, and Future Land Use Map (FLUM). 

VISION STATEMENT

A vision statement communicates a community’s aspirations and should inspire residents about the place they live. It sets 

the bar high in terms of how the city wants to be perceived by the world in the future. Below are the main elements of an 

effective vision statement: 

• Forward-looking and strategic 

• Motivating and inspirational 

• Intended to describe the community’s benefits and improvements in the future 

• Defines a community’s reason for existence and where it is heading 

• Communicate what makes your community unique or different from other communities. 

• Helps guide your community through changing times. 

In the 2016 Cibolo Comprehensive Master Plan, the vision statement read as follows: 

“Cibolo is committed to enhancing the quality and characteristic typical of a City of Choice, from excellent police and fire 

protection to quality of life issues. The city endeavors to be cognizant of its businesses and citizens first and foremost.” 

Over the course of five meetings/workshops (March 30, 2023, August 28, 2023, November 9, 2023, November 30, 2023, 

and December 19, 2023), the Master Plan Advisory Committee (MPAC) discussed and worked together to create a new 

vision statement. At its March 5, 2024, regular meeting, the MPAC voted to recommend approval of the vision statement 

and that it be presented to the EDC for concurrence in the IH-10 Corridor Plan. The vision statement is noted below. 

“Cibolo is a community where residents collaborate to shape their civic future by promoting its rich history, 

preserving a small-town feel, and investing in balanced development.”

GUIDING PRINCIPLES

The guiding principles provide overall guidance across all plan components and explain the most important general 

principles that should be followed to achieve the vision described in the plan. Guiding principles apply at the city-wide level 

and for smaller geographic areas in the city (i.e., IH-10 Corridor, Old Town, etc.). They also shape more detailed strategies 

that apply to specific elements of the plan, such as mobility or infrastructure. 

In the 2016 Cibolo Comprehensive Master Plan, the following six plan goals were recognized: 



• Provide adequate infrastructure to support projected growth. 

• Provide for the health, safety, security, and general welfare of all citizens. 

• Provide a community environment which will draw new families and businesses into the City, and encourage existing 

families and businesses to make long-term investments in Cibolo. 

• Manage the growth of jobs and businesses in harmony with residential development. 

• Provide parks, recreation, trails, and open space to serve existing and prospective citizens and visitors to Cibolo. 

• Identify and preserve the character of Cibolo which sets itself apart as a City of Choice. 

Over the course of five meetings/workshops (March 30, 2023, August 28, 2023, November 9, 2023, November 30, 2023, 

and December 19, 2023), the Master Plan Advisory Committee (MPAC) discussed and worked together to create new 

guiding principles. At its March 5, 2024, regular meeting, the MPAC voted to recommend approval of the guiding principles 

and that it be presented to the EDC for concurrence in the IH-10 Corridor Plan. The five guiding principles are listed below. 

PLACETYPES

The 2024 Cibolo Tomorrow Comprehensive Plan will define future land use and development using a place-based approach, 

“PlaceTypes”. PlaceTypes identify primary land uses, as well as supporting uses allowed within each PlaceType. In addition 

to future land use, PlaceTypes also reflect the character and scale of development in a specific area. Unlike traditional 

future land use categories used in the 2016 Comprehensive Master Plan, PlaceTypes are not focused on the use of a specific 

parcel, but rather they portray a collective mix of uses that establish a place within the community. PlaceTypes provide a 

land use and development “palette” that classifies places in Cibolo by their unique identity and character. 

Nine future land use categories were identified in the 2016 Cibolo Comprehensive Master Plan. 

• Parks & Open Space 

• Rural Residential 

• Neighborhood Residential 

• Transitional Residential 

• Neighborhood Commercial 

• Commercial 

• Business Park & Industrial 

• Downtown 

• Public / Institutional 

Over the course of six meetings/workshops (August 28, 2023, November 9, 2023, November 30, 2023, December 19, 2023, 

January 16, 2024, and January 24, 2024), Kimley-Horn and staff have brought the PlaceTypes before the Master Plan 

Advisory Committee (MPAC) for discussion and input. At its March 5, 2024, regular meeting, the MPAC voted to recommend 

approval of the vision statement. The eleven PlaceTypes are listed below, and attached is a document with additional 

details. 

• Rural Residential/ Agricultural 

• Estate Residential 

• Community Residential 

• Compact Residential 

• Neighborhood Commercial 

• Regional Activity Center 

Prioritize infrastructure to support existing needs and future growth. 

Plan for and promote the health, safety, security, and general welfare of all residents. 

Balance growth through responsible planning of city assets and land to promote a community environment. 

Provide parks, recreation, trails, and open space to serve citizens and visitors while protecting the natural environment 

and wildlife. 

Preserve the history of Cibolo and promote the friendly small town feel through community programs and events. 



Attachments

Comp Plan & IH-10 Plan Update.pdf

• Mixed-Use Centers 

• Old Town 

• Light Industrial/Business Park 

• Heavy Industrial 

• Parks and Open Space 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP

The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) is a community’s visual guide to future planning. It can serve as a guide for development 

decisions and includes the logical and orderly placement of the previous PlaceTypes. It does not constitute zoning 

regulations or establish zoning district boundaries. 

At its March 5, 2024, regular meeting, the MPAC voted to recommend approval of the Future Land Use Map. A copy of the 

recommended FLUM is attached to this report. 

SUBMITTED BY: 

Eron Spencer, Senior Planner

ATTACHMENTS:

• Presentation



2024 Cibolo Tomorrow 
Comprehensive Plan 
and IH-10 Corridor Plan 
Update

Presented By:  Eron Spencer



OVERVIEW

Plan components in the 2024 Comprehensive Plan and IH-10 
Corridor Plan include the following:
• Vision Statement
• Guiding Principles
• PlaceTypes
• Future Land Use Map (FLUM)
• Master Throughfare Plan (MTP)
• Implementation/Action Items



VISION 
STATEMENT



VISION STATEMENT

Cibolo is a community where residents 
collaborate to shape their civic future by 

promoting its rich history, preserving a small-
town feel, and investing in balanced 

development.



GUIDING 
PRINCIPLES



GUIDING PRINCIPLES
1. Prioritize infrastructure to support existing needs and 

future growth.
2. Plan for and promote the health, safety, security, and 

general welfare of all residents.
3. Balance growth through responsible planning of city 

assets and land to promote a community environment.
4. Provide parks, recreation, trails, and open space to serve 

citizens and visitors while protecting the natural 
environment and wildlife.

5. Preserve the history of Cibolo and promote the friendly 
small town feel through community programs and 
events.



PLACETYPES



PLACETYPES

• A place-based approach to define 
future land use and development 

• Reflect a land use and 
development “color palette” that 
illustrates places in Cibolo by their 
unique identity and character

• Describe the desired character of 
a place

• Mix of land uses
• Scale
• Other aspects that establish 

character
• Do not indicate single land uses
• PlaceTypes are not zoning 

categories 



Rural Residential/Agricultural
Character and Intent: 
Rural Residential/Agricultural is intended for 
areas within the city which will maintain a 
rural character during the plan horizon and 
beyond. These areas are comprised of 
natural undeveloped area, agriculture, and 
large lots with large lot minimums.

Land Use Considerations 
Primary Land Use: Single-Family 
Detached Homes, Agricultural, Parks 
and Open Space

Secondary Land Use: Civic and 
Institutional, Agricultural Business

Indicators and Assumptions: Lot size 
(range) more than 2 acres

Example Locations 
Large tracts of undeveloped land 
between FM 78 & IH-10, Borgfeld 
property on Cibolo Valley Drive. 



Estate Residential
Character and Intent: 
Predominantly single-family housing on large lots 
located throughout the community. Residential uses 
are oriented with the front of the home facing the 
street and typically in a subdivision layout with 
access to some utilities and may include farm and 
livestock uses. Cluster development, which involves 
the conservation of shared open space, natural areas, 
and scenic views, in exchange for smaller lot sizes, 
may be an alternative approach in certain 
circumstances. 

Land Use Considerations 
Primary Land Use: Single-Family Detached 
Homes, Cluster Development, Parks and 
Open Space

Secondary Land Use: Civic and Institutional, 
Small-Scale Retail

Indicators and Assumptions: Lot size (range) 
½ to 2 acres

Example Location
Single-Family Detached Homes: Persimmon 
Drive (south of Green Valley Road) 
Cluster Development: Spring Mesa in Arvada, 
CO



Community Residential
Character and Intent:
Predominantly single-family housing 
developments located throughout the 
community. Homes are in subdivisions with all 
utilities, residential streets, sidewalks, and parks/or 
connections to neighborhood parks. May have an 
elementary or middle school in the neighborhood. 
Convenience commercial businesses may be 
found around the perimeter with appropriate 
transitions to support the neighborhood. Homes 
are typically buffered from non-residential 
developments via transitional uses or landscaping. 

Land Use Considerations
Primary Land Uses: Single-Family Detached 
Homes
Secondary Land Uses: Civic and Institutional, 
Small Scale Retail, Parks and Open Space
Indicators and Assumptions: Lot size (range) 
9,000 sq ft to ½ acre (21,780 sq ft)

Example Locations
Mesa Western



Compact Residential
Character and Intent:
Provides a variety of housing types, including small-lot 
single-family detached, patio homes, townhomes, and 
duplexes in a compact network of complete, walkable streets 
that are easy to navigate by car, bicycle, or foot. This 
PlaceType also supports multifamily. Homes are in 
subdivisions with all utilities, residential streets, sidewalks, 
and parks/or connections to neighborhood parks. 
Neighborhoods may be adjacent to neighborhood-oriented 
businesses. Key intersections (i.e., FM 78 and FM 1103), and 
areas within walking distance of local commercial, are the 
most appropriate locations for this PlaceType, except 
between residential neighborhoods and communities (infill 
development).

Land Use Considerations
Primary Land Uses: Single-family Detached Homes, Single-
Family Attached Homes, Patio Homes, Townhomes, 
Multifamily Complex

Secondary Land Uses: Neighborhood-oriented businesses, 
Civic and Institutional, Small Scale Office, Parks and Open 
Space. 

Indicators and Assumptions: Single Family lot size (range) 
up to 9,000 sq ft

Example Locations
Single Family Detached Homes: Bentwood Ranch, Cibolo 
Valley Ranch

Duplexes: Sydney Cove

Multifamily Complexes: Grand at Cibolo, Trophy Oak



Neighborhood Commercial
Character and Intent:
Neighborhood Commercial development is 
characterized by small, free-standing buildings 
containing one or more businesses. Neighborhood 
Commercial primarily provides family-oriented 
services for the surrounding neighborhoods and 
city. They are generally located within walking 
distance of surrounding residential uses and 
neighborhoods. Business types may include 
restaurants, local retail, medical offices, banks, and 
other retail and service uses. 

Land Use Considerations
Primary Land Uses: Neighborhood Retail, Office
Secondary Land Uses: Civic and Institutional, 
Parks and Open Space

Example Locations
Cibolo Valley Square, Shops at Cibolo Bend, 

Chipotle/City Vet Complex



Regional Activity Center
Character and Intent:
Regional Activity Center developments are larger 
in scale and attract regional traffic for shopping 
and retail needs. These commercial centers are 
anchored by mid-to-big box retailers located 
along major thoroughfares (i.e., freeways and 
arterial roads). National retailers and grocery 
stores would typically be located in this PlaceType. 
Regional Activity Center can also contain smaller 
retail or office destinations as well, such as medical 
offices or boutiques, but are typically anchored by 
several national vendors. Business types may 
include restaurants, national retailers, discount 
stores, grocery
stores, fast food, and other retail and service uses.

Land Use Considerations
Primary Land Uses: Community and regional-
serving retail and commercial
Secondary Land Uses: Civic and Institutional, 
Medical, Small Scale Retail, Hotel, Parks and 
Open Space, Office

Example Locations
Cibolo Crossing Shopping Center, Walmart, HEB



Mixed-Use Center
Character and Intent:
Mixed-Use Centers are master planned to offer the 
ability to live, work, and play in one geographically 
compact area with a high intensity of uses organized 
around nodes of activity. This PlaceType includes a 
mixture of different housing options within close 
proximity to goods and services and may serve as an 
employment center and shopping destination for 
adjacent neighborhoods. Buildings are typically built 
to the sidewalk located on internal local streets to 
create a pedestrian-oriented environment, and can 
be one, two or more stories with residences or offices 
located above the street-level storefronts. Includes a 
space for recreation and gathering. The design and 
scale of development in a Mixed-Use Center 
encourage active living through a comprehensive 
network of walkable, complete streets.

Land Use Considerations
Primary Land Uses: Retail, Large Scale 
Commercial, Condominiums, Mixed-Use 
Multifamily, Offices, Hotel, Entertainment 
Venues
Secondary Land Uses: Civic and Institutional, 
Offices, Parks and Open Space

Example Locations
City of Southlake Town Center, The Quarry



Old Town
Character and Intent:
Centrally located area containing a mix of 
residential, commercial, civic and entertainment 
uses. It is a destination for shopping and 
entertainment that promotes independently 
owned, family-friendly businesses that attract 
patrons from surrounding neighborhoods and 
cities, that has a traditional, small-scale downtown 
built form that coexists harmoniously with 
surrounding residential uses. The design and scale 
of development is pedestrian-oriented, can be one 
to two stories, and encourages active living and a 
mix of uses within an interconnected network of 
blocks and streets.

Land Use Considerations
Primary Land Uses: Single-Family Detached 
Homes, Garden Homes, Small Scale Retail, 
Office, Bed and Breakfast
Secondary Land Uses: Civic and Institutional, 
Parks and Open Space, Small Scale 
Entertainment Venues, Personal Services

Example Locations
Old Town



Light Industrial/ Business Park
Character and Intent:
Light Industrial/Business Park includes business 
and office-related land uses, warehousing, and 
light industrial and manufacturing uses that occur 
indoors and do not include the processing of raw 
materials. Office and business park land uses may 
be supported by nearby retail and restaurant uses.

Land Use Considerations
Primary Land Uses: Business Parks, 
Technology/Data Centers, Flex 
Offices/Warehousing, Office, Light 
Manufacturing (i.e., Clothing and Fabric 
Manufacturing, Electronics and Appliance 
Manufacturing, Food and Beverage Product 
Manufacturing, etc.), Call Centers, Logistics
Secondary Land Uses: Small Scale Retail, Civic 
and Institutional, Parks and Open Space, Hotel

Example Locations
AISIN, Schneider Industrial Park, Jorgensen 
Industrial Park



Heavy Industrial
Character and Intent:
Heavy Industrial areas provide jobs and keep 
people in the city. This PlaceType is generally 
found near major transportation corridors (i.e., 
highways and railways) and may include heavy 
manufacturing and production uses that occur 
outdoors and involve the processing of raw 
materials.

Land Use Considerations
Primary Land Uses: Manufacturing, Major Utility 
Facilities, Mining, Extraction Services, etc.
Secondary Land Uses: Civic and Institutional, 
Parks and Open Space

Example Locations
Heavy manufacturing and industrial uses on FM 

78, FM 1518, IH-10, etc. 



Parks and Open Space
Character and Intent:
Open Space indicates existing and future planned 
parks. Future parks are allowed in all PlaceTypes, 
but this designation protects existing parks and 
recreational facilities as such and preserves land 
that is intended to be dedicated for parkland 
development in the future or areas that may be 
preserved due to the influence water may have on 
development in the area.

Land Use Considerations
Primary Land Uses: Parks and Open Space, 
Trails, Floodplain Management
Secondary Land Uses:

Example Locations
Schlather Park, Neimietz Park, Veterans 

Memorial Park, Al Rich Park, Cibolo Sports 

Complex, Ron Pedde Community Garden



FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
(FLUM)



1/30/24 - FLUM 
EXERCISE



2016 FLUM & 
MTP

2024 FLUM - 
DRAFT



NEXT STEPS



NEXT STEPS

MPAC meeting – March 27th 
• Master Thoroughfare Plan (MTP)
• Implementation/Action Items

Draft chapters
• 2024 Comprehensive Plan
• IH-10 Corridor Plan

Public hearings
• Recommendation
• Adoption



QUESTIONS?  



City of Cibolo

Planning and Zoning Commission Staff Report

Staff Update

Meeting

Wednesday, March 13, 2024, 6:30 PM

Agenda Group

UDC, CIP, Master Plan and Staff Updates Item: 9A

From

Susana Huerta, Assistant Planning Director

Staff Contact(s)

Susana Huerta,

Attachments

2024-3-13 Planning Update.pdf

Type…



Planning Department - Staff Update 
March 13, 2024  

 
Site Plans currently in review  

Project Description 

504 Pfeil  Tattoo Studio  

Dorado Multi-Family Multi-Family development 

Everyday Christian Fellowship Structure 

Turning Stone C7 Lot 3 Retail center 

Signature Plating Building Expansion 

Scooter’s Coffee Drive-thru 

To follow permitted projects, visit our website for an interactive map on Current Development.  
 

Site Plans recently approved 

Project Description 

- - 
  

Plats currently in review  

Project Application Type 

Saddle Creek Unit 8 Amending Plat  

Cibolo Business Park  Replat 

Cibolo Creek Center (agenda item) Final Plat 
 

P&Z Recommendations/City Council Action 

Agenda item 
P&Z 

recommendation 
date 

City Council 
action 

date 

Turning Stone C7 Lot 3 Denial 2/14/2024 Approved 2/27/2024 

Grace Valley Unit 3A Denial 2/14/2024 Approved 2/27/2024 

Venado Crossing Unit 5 Denial 2/14/2024 Tabled 2/27/2024 

Buffalo Crossing II Knights 
Crossing 

Approval 2/14/2024 Approved 2/27/2024 

Cibolo Business Park Denial 2/14/2024 TBD 3/12/2024 

 

https://maps-and-gis-cibolotx.hub.arcgis.com/apps/2f68463e81294f37a68c8ef442e85b29

	PlanningandZoningCommission-2024-03-13.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	A. CUP-24-02-Signed Application.pdf
	B. Staff Map.pdf
	C. CUP-24-02-SHT_1_OF_3_SITE_PLAN.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	A. Variance Application.pdf
	B. Property Map.pdf
	D. ROW Exhibit.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Ordinance.pdf
	Staffmap_ Old Town Overlay.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	A. ORD 1417 10_10_2023.pdf
	B. Application.pdf
	C. 504Pfeil_Rd_Notification_Map.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	021424 PZ Minutes.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	A. PC-24-07-FP-FP-project letter.pdf
	MGO Application.pdf
	B. Plat.pdf
	PC-24-07-FP-FP-2-2-24 cibolo creek center plat 1 of 2_020224
	PC-24-07-FP-FP-2-2-24 cibolo creek center plat 2 of 2_020224

	C. PC-24-07-FP-240228 - Cibolo Creek Center -Final Plat - KFW Letter.pdf
	D. Staff Map.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	A. CUP-24-02-Signed Application.pdf
	B. Staff Map.pdf
	C. CUP-24-02-SHT_1_OF_3_SITE_PLAN.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	A. Variance Application.pdf
	B. Property Map.pdf
	D. ROW Exhibit.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Ordinance.pdf
	Staffmap_ Old Town Overlay.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	A. ORD 1417 10_10_2023.pdf
	B. Application.pdf
	C. 504Pfeil_Rd_Notification_Map.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Comp Plan & IH-10 Plan Update.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25

	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	2024-3-13 Planning Update.pdf



